This Disclosure Document is being provided solely for the purpose of providing certain managed account clients of Optimize Inc. with information respecting the Optimize Private Client Program which utilizes the Funds described herein for the purpose of affording each client the opportunity to understand associated conflicts of interest and to make an informed decision to authorize Optimize Inc. to exercise discretionary authority that has been granted to it by the client to acquire units of the Funds on behalf of the client.

Offering the following Optimize Model Portfolios: Optimize All Growth Portfolio Optimize Growth Balanced Portfolio Optimize Balanced Growth Portfolio Optimize Income Balanced Portfolio Optimize Income Portfolio Optimize Money Market Portfolio

Utilizing Class OWM and Class OWM US Units of: Optimize Premium Yield Fund (formerly Optimize Premium Income Fund) Optimize Growth Equity Fund Optimize Core Equity Fund Optimize Global Equity Fund Optimize Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund Optimize Diversified Income Fund Optimize Money Market Fund

OPTIMIZE MODEL PORTFOLIOS

OPTIMIZE FUND DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

November 1, 2023

The Funds are related and/or connected issuers of Optimize Inc. under applicable securities laws. See "MANAGEMENT OF THE FUNDS – Conflict of Interest".

Table of Contents

GLOSSARY OF TERMS	2
OPTIMIZE PRIVATE CLIENT PROGRAM	1
Model Portfolios Optimize Private Client Program Brochure Suitability Determination based on Proprietary Products	2
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND RESTRICTIONS OF THE OPTIMIZE FUN	
Investment Objectives and Strategies General Leverage Use of Derivative Instruments Foreign Currency Exposure Investment Restrictions	9 9 9 9
Related and Connected Issuers	
MANAGEMENT OF THE FUNDS AND THE OPTIMIZE PRIVATE CLIENT PROGRAM	11
The Manager	11
Directors and Senior Officers of the Manager	
Licensed Optimize Representatives	
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST	14
Fair Allocation of Investment Opportunities Related and Connected Issuers Personal Trading Referral Arrangements Soft Dollar Arrangements Relationship Disclosure Information	14 14 15 15
FEES AND EXPENSES	16
Management Fees Account Level Fees Performance Fees Paid by Optimize Private Opportunities Funds Manager's Lien Administration Fees and Expenses Underlying Investment Expense	16 16 17 17
DISTRIBUTIONS	18
VALUATION AND NET ASSET VALUE	19
Calculation of Net Asset Value of the Funds Series Accounting for Optimize Private Opportunities Funds	
REDEMPTIONS OF UNITS	20
Suspension of Redemptions	21
UNITS OF THE FUNDS	
Classes and Series Foreign Currency Exposure	21

Attributes of the Units	22
CERTAIN INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS	23
Status of the Funds Taxation of the Funds Taxation of Unitholders Taxation of Registered Plans International Information Reporting	24 25 27
ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT	27
CERTAIN RISK FACTORS	28
Introduction Risk and Return Risk Factors Applicable to Investments in the Funds Risk Factors Applicable to Investments in the Optimize Private Opportunities Funds	29 30
DECLARATION OF TRUST	47
Amendments to the Declaration of Trust Termination of a Fund Meetings of Unitholders	48
MATERIAL CONTRACTS	48
ADMINISTRATOR	48
CUSTODIAN	48
AUDITORS	49

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

"Accounts" means the investment accounts of clients managed on a discretionary basis by Optimize, and "Account" means any one of them.

"Administrator" means Apex Fund Services (Canada) Ltd. in its capacity as the administrator of the Funds.

"Auditor" means Ernst & Young LLP in its capacity as the auditor of the Funds.

"**Business Day**" means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday on which banks in Toronto, Ontario are generally open for conducting business with commercial customers.

"Class" means each class of units of each Fund, which includes the Class A Units, Class AUS Units, Class OWM Units, Class OWMUS Units, Class F Units, Class FUS Units, Class I Units, Class IUS Units, Class O Units and Class OUS Units of each Fund.

"**Class Expenses**" means the Management Fees and Performance Fees, if any, payable in respect of a Class of Units of a Fund and all other costs, expenses and other similar amounts attributable to a particular Class of Units of that Fund, all as determined by Optimize.

"Class Net Asset Value" means the net asset value of a Class of Units of a Fund as described under the heading "Valuation and Net Asset Value".

"Class Net Asset Value per Unit" means the net asset value per Unit of a Class of Units of a Fund as described under the heading "Valuation and Net Asset Value".

"Custodian" means National Bank Independent Network, and its successors, as described under the heading "CUSTODIAN".

"**Custodian Agreement**" means the agreement between the Custodian and Optimize providing for the custody of assets of the Funds.

"**Declaration of Trust**" means the Declaration of Trust of the Funds dated as of January 1, 2020, as amended and restated on December 22, 2020, further amended and restated as of March 17, 2021, further amended and restated as of April 7, 2022 and further amended and restated as of April 1, 2023.

"ETFs" means exchange traded funds, which are investment funds that track an index, a commodity or a basket of assets like an index fund, that issue securities that trade like a stock on an exchange, thus experiencing price changes throughout the day as the securities are bought and sold, and "ETF" means any one of them.

"Funds" or **"Optimize Funds**" means the OPO Funds, the Optimize Core Funds and the Portfolio Funds, and **"Fund**" or **"Optimize Fund**" means any one of them.

"Fund Net Asset Value" means the net asset value of a Fund which, on any Valuation Date, will be equal to the difference between the aggregate value of the assets of the Fund and the aggregate value of the liabilities of the Fund on that Valuation Date.

"Investment Policy" means your completed know-your-client (KYC) questionnaire and "Investment Policy – Investment Management Services" document discussed between you and your Licensed Optimize Representative and accepted by you.

"Licensed Optimize Representatives" means all individuals registered in the category of: (i) "Advising Representative" and holding the title of "Portfolio Manager" at Optimize, and (ii) "Associate Advising Representative" and holding the title of "Associate Portfolio Manager" at Optimize.

"Management Fees" means the annual management fees paid by each Class of Units of each Fund to Optimize as described under "FEES AND EXPENSES - Management Fees".

"**Manager**" means Optimize Inc., in its capacity as manager of the Funds, or any Person appointed as a replacement for the Manager in accordance with the provisions of the Declaration of Trust.

"Maximum Permitted Borrowing" means up to 50% of the total value of the assets of the Fund at the time such Fund enters into such borrowing or other transaction.

"Optimize Private Client Program Brochure" means the brochure prepared for clients in the Optimize Private Client Program which describes the Model Portfolios and the investment objectives and strategies of the Optimize Funds, which is reviewed by each client and their Licensed Optimize Representative.

"NAV" means net asset value, with reference to Fund Net Asset Value, Class Net Asset Value or Class Net Asset Value per Unit, as the case may be.

"Optimize" means Optimize Inc., an Ontario corporation carrying on business under the trade name "Optimize Wealth Management" and registered as a portfolio manager, investment fund manager and exempt market dealer in certain provinces of Canada.

"Optimize Core Funds" means Optimize Core Equity Fund, Optimize Global Equity Fund, Optimize Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund, Optimize Diversified Income Fund and Optimize Money Market Fund and **"Optimize Core Fund"** means any one of them.

"Optimize Model Portfolios" or "**Model Portfolios**" means Optimize All Growth Portfolio, Optimize Growth Balanced Portfolio, Optimize Balanced Growth Portfolio, Optimize Income Balanced Portfolio, Optimize Income Portfolio and Optimize Money Market Portfolio, developed by Optimize, and each comprised of Units of OPO Funds and Optimize Core Funds, and "**Optimize Model Portfolio**" or "**Model Portfolio**" means any one of them.

"Optimize Portfolio Funds" or "**Portfolio Funds**" means Optimize All Growth Portfolio Fund, Optimize Growth Balanced Portfolio Fund, Optimize Balanced Growth Portfolio Fund, Optimize Income Balanced Portfolio Fund and Optimize Income Portfolio Fund, developed by Optimize, and each comprised of Units of the OPO Funds and Optimize Core Funds and "**Optimize Portfolio Fund**" or "**Portfolio Fund**" means any one of them.

"Optimize Private Opportunities Funds" or "OPO Funds" means Optimize Premium Yield Fund (formerly Optimize Premium Income Fund) and Optimize Growth Equity Fund and "Optimize Private Opportunities Fund" or "OPO Fund" means any one of them.

"**Performance Fee**" means the performance fee paid to Optimize by certain Funds as described under the heading "FEES AND EXPENSES - Performance Fees Paid by Optimize Private Opportunities Funds".

"**Portfolio Management Agreement**" means the agreement entered into between a client and Optimize under which the client grants Optimize discretionary authority to manage the Account(s) of the client.

"**Prior Firm**" means a firm that provided services to a client before the client's Relationship Manager joined Optimize.

"**Relationship Manager**" means an individual financial professional who has joined Optimize and is introducing the Optimize Private Client Program to clients to whom the individual provided services before joining Optimize.

"**Risk Factors**" means the risks that should be considered by clients in connection with the purchase of Units, as a result of, among other considerations, the proposed nature and operations of the Funds, as described under the heading "CERTAIN RISK FACTORS".

"Series Net Asset Value" means the net asset value of a Series of Units of an Optimize Private Opportunities Fund as described under the heading "VALUATION AND NET ASSET VALUE".

"Series Net Asset Value per Unit" means the net asset value per Unit of a Series of Units of an Optimize Private Opportunities Fund as described under the heading "VALUATION AND NET ASSET VALUE".

"Series of Units" or "Series" means a series of a Class of Units of an Optimize Private Opportunities Fund.

"**Tax Act**" means the *Income Tax Act* (Canada) and the regulations thereunder, as amended from time to time.

"**Termination**" means that the termination of a Fund upon not less than three months' notice by the Manager to the Unitholders, if in the opinion of the Manager it would be in the best interests of the Unitholders to terminate the Fund. Funds do not have fixed termination dates.

"Trustee" means Optimize, in its capacity as trustee of the Funds pursuant to the Declaration of Trust.

"Underlying Funds" means funds managed by third party managers identified by Optimize from time to time in which the capital of certain Funds is invested, including private equity funds, private credit funds, private real estate investment trusts, private infrastructure funds, private secondaries funds, private funds-of-funds, ETFs, mutual funds and non-redeemable investment funds.

"Underlying Investment" means the investments identified by the Manager from time to time in which the capital of certain Funds is invested, which will include Underlying Funds and direct equity and fixed income investments in companies, cash and cash equivalents, government securities, money market instruments and investment grade securities, as well as publicly traded equity and fixed income securities, derivative instruments and other securities.

"**Underlying Investment Expenses**" means the fees and expenses paid to or incurred by the Funds, which are subject to and paid to or incurred by or in respect of Underlying Investments including management fees and, in some instances, carried interest or other performance-based fees payable to the managers of those investments.

"**Unitholder**" means the holder of one or more Units of a Fund and, for greater certainty, clients of the Optimize Private Client Program are Unitholders of the Funds in the Model Portfolios that have been assigned to their Accounts.

"Units" means a unit of a Fund.

"Valuation Date" means the last business day of each week, or such other date as may be designated by Optimize for the calculation of Fund Net Asset Value, Class Net Asset Value and Class Net Asset Value per Unit of each Class of Units.

This Disclosure Document is being provided solely for the purpose of providing certain managed account clients of Optimize Inc. with information respecting the Optimize Private Client Program which utilizes the Funds described herein for the purpose of affording each client the opportunity to understand associated conflicts of interest and to make an informed decision to authorize Optimize Inc. to exercise discretionary authority that has been granted to it by the client to acquire units of the Funds on behalf of the client.

OPTIMIZE PRIVATE CLIENT PROGRAM

Model Portfolios

The Optimize Private Client Program is a proprietary discretionary investment management service offered by Optimize to its clients. To participate in the Optimize Private Client Program, each client enters into a Portfolio Management Agreement with Optimize and agrees to an Investment Policy with their Licensed Optimize Representative which describe the client's return objectives, stability objectives, time horizon and liquidity needs for each of the client's Accounts. On the basis of this information, and in consultation with the client, the Licensed Optimize Representative assigns one of the following Model Portfolios to each Account managed by Optimize on behalf of the client:

Optimize Model Portfolios

Optimize All Growth Portfolio Optimize Growth Balanced Portfolio Optimize Balanced Growth Portfolio Optimize Income Balanced Portfolio Optimize Income Portfolio Optimize Money Market Portfolio

Licensed Optimize Representatives may also utilize the following Model Portfolios when managing certain types of Accounts, as described below under "Portfolio Funds":

Optimize Portfolio Funds

Optimize All Growth Portfolio Fund Optimize Growth Balanced Portfolio Fund Optimize Balanced Growth Portfolio Fund Optimize Income Balanced Portfolio Fund Optimize Income Portfolio Fund

Each Optimize Model Portfolio and each Optimize Portfolio Fund is comprised solely of Units of one or more Optimize Funds. The Model Portfolios may also own cash or cash equivalents for the purposes of liquidity, covering costs or portfolio adjustments.

Each Optimize Fund has its own investment objective and is a separate investment fund. Optimize manages the investments of each Optimize Fund. The Optimize Funds take an active approach toward portfolio management, as described under "INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND RESTRICTIONS OF THE OPTIMIZE FUNDS - Investment Objectives and Strategies"

The weighting of the Funds included in a Model Portfolio is determined by Optimize and may change over time. Once developed and implemented, the weighting of each Fund in a Model Portfolio is constantly monitored by Optimize. A reasonable range of weighting variations is permitted to take into account daily fluctuations in the value of the Units of the Funds but, from time to time, rebalancing is required. Rebalancing is the process of adjusting the mix of Funds in the Model Portfolio as market conditions change so that the Model Portfolio matches the mandate of the Model Portfolio over time. Optimize will periodically rebalance the mix of Funds in an Optimize Model Portfolio or Portfolio Fund by

redeeming Units of one or more Funds and applying the redemption price to purchase Units of one or more other Funds.

Optimize Private Client Program Brochure

Please see the Optimize Private Client Program Brochure for a description of each Optimize Model Portfolio. The Fund weightings set out in the Optimize Private Client Program Brochure are for informational purposes only and will not be kept at any exact allocation, as periodically and as Optimize deems necessary, these proportions/allocations may be adjusted in order to better manage the Accounts based on changing market and economic conditions.

Suitability Determination based on Proprietary Products

Generally, when determining which Model Portfolio is the most suitable for each client's Account(s) based on their Investment Policy, Licensed Optimize Representatives will select from among the Optimize Model Portfolios. Clients should understand that because all of the investment funds included in the Optimize Model Portfolios are proprietary products, the suitability determination conducted by your Licensed Optimize Representative will not consider the larger market of non-proprietary products or whether those non-proprietary products would be better, worse, or equal in meeting the client's investment needs and objectives.

Prospective investors are encouraged to consult their own professional advisors as to the tax and legal consequences of participating in the Optimize Private Client Program.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND RESTRICTIONS OF THE OPTIMIZE FUNDS

Optimize is the trustee, investment fund manager and portfolio manager of the following Optimize Funds, which form the building blocks for the Model Portfolios:

Optimize Private Opportunities Funds

Optimize Premium Yield Fund (formerly Optimize Premium Income Fund) Optimize Growth Equity Fund

Optimize Core Funds

Optimize Core Equity Fund Optimize Global Equity Fund Optimize Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund Optimize Diversified Income Fund Optimize Money Market Fund

Optimize Portfolio Funds

Optimize All Growth Portfolio Fund Optimize Growth Balanced Portfolio Fund Optimize Balanced Growth Portfolio Fund Optimize Income Balanced Portfolio Fund Optimize Income Portfolio Fund

The investment objective and strategies of each Optimize Fund are summarized below. There can be no assurance that a Fund will achieve its investment objectives. See "CERTAIN RISK FACTORS".

Investment Objectives and Strategies

Optimize Premium Yield Fund

The investment objective of the Optimize Premium Yield Fund is to maximize long-term total returns for investors by investing in a diversified portfolio of income-oriented investments, including investments in private credit funds. Commencing on June 1, 2023, the investment objective of the Optimize Premium Yield Fund will be to maximize long-term total returns for investors by investing in a diversified portfolio of income-oriented investments, including investments in private credit funds.

To achieve its investment objective, the Fund uses a multi-asset investment strategy which includes selecting growth and yield oriented investments, tactical market exposure, and stakes in private investment funds and companies while using guiding principles which stress independent research, stringent security selection, and disciplined portfolio construction. The Fund combines equity and yield-based analysis with other sound investment strategies aimed to deliver attractive returns on a relative basis throughout full market cycles.

The Fund will invest in a diversified portfolio of private and public securities. Generally, private securities will include private credit funds, private equity funds, private real estate investment trusts, private infrastructure funds, private secondaries funds, private funds-of-funds, Underlying Funds, and direct investments in fixed income securities of private issuers (including convertible and hybrid securities). The

public securities of the Funds will include ETFs, mutual funds, non-redeemable investment funds, cash and cash equivalents, government securities, money market instruments, investment grade securities, as well as other publicly traded equity and fixed income securities.

When investing in Underlying Funds, Optimize seeks to select fund managers that have strong track records and financial interests that are closely aligned with their investors. In some cases, Underlying Investments are acquired on a secondary basis from previous investors.

The Fund seeks to diversify its investment portfolio, including Underlying Funds and direct investments, by focusing on a variety of industries and regions at various stages of their business life cycle.

Further details regarding the current holdings and investment strategies of the Optimize Premium Yield Fund are set out in the Optimize Private Client Program Brochure.

Optimize Growth Equity Fund

The investment objective of the Optimize Growth Equity Fund is to maximize long-term total returns for investors by investing in a diversified portfolio of equity-oriented investments, including investments in private equity funds. Commencing on June 1, 2023, the investment objective of the Optimize Growth Equity Fund will be to maximize long-term total returns for investors by investing in a diversified portfolio of growth-oriented investments, including investments in private securities.

To achieve its investment objective, the Fund uses a multi-asset, multi-strategy approach which provides investors with access to a diversified portfolio of public and private investments, including stakes in growth oriented companies, private investment funds and publicly traded private equity firms. Generally, private securities will include Underlying Funds and direct investments in equity securities of private issuers. The public securities of the Fund will include ETFs, mutual funds, non-redeemable investment funds, cash and cash equivalents, government securities, money market instruments, investment grade securities, as well as publicly traded equity and fixed income securities and other securities.

The Fund selects investments based on thorough fundamental and quantitative analysis and implements a risk-based and disciplined investment strategy to solidify buy, sell, and hold decisions. The Fund achieves increased diversification across investments and fund manager stage, vintage and sector, and employs comprehensive investment strategies to help reduce portfolio volatility.

When investing in Underlying Funds, Optimize seeks to select fund managers that have strong track records and financial interests that are closely aligned with their investors. In some cases, Underlying Investments are acquired on a secondary basis from previous investors.

The Fund seeks to diversify its investment portfolio, including Underlying Funds and direct investments, by focusing on a variety of industries and regions at various stages of their business life cycle.

Further details regarding the current holdings and investment strategies of the Optimize Growth Equity Fund are set out in the Optimize Private Client Program Brochure.

Optimize Core Equity Fund

The investment objective of the Optimize Core Equity Fund is to maximize long-term total returns for investors by investing in a diversified portfolio of equity securities of large North American public companies as well as investments in ETFs and other public diversified securities such as closed-end funds.

The primary strategy of the Fund is to achieve strong long term risk-adjusted returns by investing in an array of North American companies, broadly diversified by both geographic domicile and industry. The Core Equity Fund also invests in ETFs and other public diversified securities such as closed-end funds.

Further details regarding the current holdings and investment strategies of the Optimize Core Equity Fund are set out in the Optimize Private Client Program Brochure.

Optimize Global Equity Fund

The investment objective of the Optimize Global Equity Fund is to maximize long term total returns for investors by investing in a diversified portfolio of growth-oriented investments, including equity securities of North American and International public companies as well as investments in ETFs, mutual funds, and other public diversified securities such as closed-end funds.

To achieve its investment objective, the Fund will invest in a portfolio of growth-oriented investments, including publicly traded equity securities, fixed income securities, and other securities as well as ETFs and mutual funds, fixed income securities, cash and cash equivalents, government securities, money market instruments, and investment grade securities. When investing in Underlying Funds, Optimize seeks to select fund managers that have strong track records and financial interests that are closely aligned with their investors.

Further details regarding the current holdings and investment strategies of the Optimize Global Equity Fund are set out in the Optimize Private Client Program Brochure.

Optimize Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund

The investment objective of the Optimize Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund is to maximize long term total returns for investors by adjusting the allocations in which it invests across a diversified portfolio of growthoriented and income-oriented investments across sectors and geographies, including equity securities of North American and International public companies, ETFs, mutual funds, and other public diversified securities such as closed-end funds, as well as investments in fixed income securities, based on prevailing market conditions.

To achieve its investment objective, the Fund will assess prevailing market conditions to either increase or decrease its allocations towards investments across a portfolio of growth-oriented and income-oriented investments across sectors and geographies, including publicly traded equity securities, fixed income securities, and other securities as well as ETFs and mutual funds, fixed income securities, cash and cash equivalents, government securities, money market instruments, and investment grade securities. When investing in Underlying Funds, Optimize seeks to select fund managers that have strong track records and financial interests that are closely aligned with their investors.

Further details regarding the current holdings and investment strategies of the Optimize Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund are set out in the Optimize Private Client Program Brochure.

Optimize Diversified Income Fund

The investment objective of the Optimize Diversified Income Fund is to maximize total returns for investors by investing in a diversified portfolio of income-oriented investments such as government bonds, corporate bonds, cash, preferred shares, interest bearing securities, collateralized notes, debt securities, and other dividend yielding securities. Optimize believes that investing in this strategy will

continue to offer the potential for attractive total returns and also provides risk reduction through diversification.

To achieve its investment objective, the Fund will invest in a portfolio of income-oriented investments, including fixed income securities, ETFs, preferred shares, dividend yielding securities, mutual funds, cash and cash equivalents, government securities, money market instruments, and investment grade securities. When investing in funds, Optimize seeks to select fund managers that have strong track records and financial interests that are closely aligned with their investors.

Further details regarding the current holdings and investment strategies of the Optimize Diversified Income Fund are set out in the Optimize Private Client Program Brochure.

Optimize Money Market Fund

The investment objective of the Optimize Money Market Fund is to maximize total returns for investors by investing in a diversified portfolio of short-term money market and fixed income investments such as treasury bills, provincial bills, bankers' acceptances, and commercial paper. Optimize believes that investing in this strategy will continue to offer the potential for attractive total returns and also provides risk reduction through diversification.

To achieve its investment objective, the Fund will invest in a portfolio of short-term money market investments, including fixed income securities, ETFs, mutual funds, cash and cash equivalents, government securities, money market instruments, and investment grade securities. When investing in funds, Optimize seeks to select fund managers that have strong track records and financial interests that are closely aligned with their investors.

Further details regarding the current holdings and investment strategies of the Optimize Money Market Fund are set out in the Optimize Private Client Program Brochure.

Optimize All Growth Portfolio Fund

The investment objective of the Optimize All Growth Portfolio Fund is to maximize long-term total returns for investors by investing in a diversified portfolio of growth-oriented and income-oriented investments, with a significant bias towards growth-oriented investments, across asset classes, sectors, and geographies, including fixed income securities and equity securities of North American and International public companies, ETFs, mutual funds, and other public diversified securities such as closed-end funds, as well as investments in private securities, private equity securities, and private credit securities.

The Fund is a "fund-of-funds" and invests up to 100% of its assets in the Optimize Private Opportunities Funds and the Optimize Core Funds (for these purposes, the "**Underlying Optimize Funds**"). The Fund selects Underlying Optimize Funds with a view to tracking, as closely as possible, the Optimize All Growth Portfolio. The current allocations of the Fund are set out in the Optimize Private Client Program Brochure. Optimize will rebalance the Fund from time to time in its discretion.

The Fund will invest in Class O and Class OUS Units of the OPO Funds and the Optimize Core Funds. These classes of Units do not pay Management Fees, however, Class O and Class OUS Units of the OPO Funds will pay the Manager Performance Fees as described under "FEES AND EXPENSES – Performance Fees Paid by Optimize Private Opportunities Funds".

None of the officers, directors or substantial security holders of Optimize has a significant interest in any Underlying Optimize Fund. Clients that hold Units of the Optimize Portfolio Funds are entitled to receive,

on request and free of charge, the annual audited financial statements and interim financial statements of each Underlying Optimize Fund.

Optimize Growth Balanced Portfolio Fund

The investment objective of the Optimize Growth Balanced Portfolio Fund is to maximize long-term total returns for investors by investing in a diversified portfolio of growth-oriented and income-oriented investments, with an emphasis towards growth-oriented investments, across asset classes, sectors, and geographies, including fixed income securities and equity securities of North American and International public companies, ETFs, mutual funds, and other public diversified securities such as closed-end funds, as well as investments in private securities, private equity securities, and private credit securities.

The Fund is a "fund-of-funds" and invests up to 100% of its assets in the Optimize Private Opportunities Funds and the Optimize Core Funds (for these purposes, the "**Underlying Optimize Funds**"). The Fund selects Underlying Optimize Funds with a view to tracking, as closely as possible, the Optimize Growth Balanced Portfolio. The current allocations of the Fund are set out in the Optimize Private Client Program Brochure. Optimize will rebalance the Fund from time to time in its discretion.

The Fund will invest in Class O and Class OUS Units of the OPO Funds and the Optimize Core Funds. These classes of Units do not pay Management Fees, however, Class O and Class OUS Units of the OPO Funds will pay the Manager Performance Fees as described under "FEES AND EXPENSES – Performance Fees Paid by Optimize Private Opportunities Funds".

None of the officers, directors or substantial security holders of Optimize has a significant interest in any Underlying Optimize Fund. Clients that hold Units of the Optimize Portfolio Funds are entitled to receive, on request and free of charge, the annual audited financial statements and interim financial statements of each Underlying Optimize Fund.

Optimize Balanced Growth Portfolio Fund

The investment objective of the Optimize Balanced Growth Portfolio Fund is to maximize long-term total returns for investors by investing in a diversified portfolio of growth-oriented and income-oriented investments across asset classes, sectors, and geographies, including fixed income securities and equity securities of North American and International public companies, ETFs, mutual funds, and other public diversified securities such as closed-end funds, as well as investments in private securities, private equity securities, and private credit securities.

The Fund is a "fund-of-funds" and invests up to 100% of its assets in the Optimize Private Opportunities Funds and the Optimize Core Funds (for these purposes, the "**Underlying Optimize Funds**"). The Fund selects Underlying Optimize Funds with a view to tracking, as closely as possible, the Optimize Balanced Growth Portfolio.The current allocations of the Fund are set out in the Optimize Private Client Program Brochure. Optimize will rebalance the Fund from time to time in its discretion.

The Fund will invest in Class O and Class OUS Units of the OPO Funds and the Optimize Core Funds. These classes of Units do not pay Management Fees, however, Class O and Class OUS Units of the OPO Funds will pay the Manager Performance Fees as described under "FEES AND EXPENSES – Performance Fees Paid by Optimize Private Opportunities Funds".

None of the officers, directors or substantial security holders of Optimize has a significant interest in any Underlying Optimize Fund. Clients that hold Units of the Optimize Portfolio Funds are entitled to receive,

on request and free of charge, the annual audited financial statements and interim financial statements of each Underlying Optimize Fund.

Optimize Income Balanced Portfolio Fund

The investment objective of the Optimize Income Balanced Portfolio Fund is to maximize yield and longterm total returns for investors by investing in a diversified portfolio of growth-oriented and incomeoriented investments across asset classes, sectors, and geographies, including fixed income securities and equity securities of North American and International public companies, ETFs, mutual funds, and other public diversified securities such as closed-end funds, as well as investments in private securities, private equity securities, and private credit securities.

The Fund is a "fund-of-funds" and invests up to 100% of its assets in the Optimize Private Opportunities Funds and the Optimize Core Funds (for these purposes, the "**Underlying Optimize Funds**"). The Fund selects Underlying Optimize Funds with a view to tracking, as closely as possible, the Optimize Income Balanced Portfolio. The current allocations of the Fund are set out in the Optimize Private Client Program Brochure. Optimize will rebalance the Fund from time to time in its discretion.

The Fund will invest in Class O and Class OUS Units of the OPO Funds and the Optimize Core Funds. These classes of Units do not pay Management Fees, however, Class O and Class OUS Units of the OPO Funds will pay the Manager Performance Fees as described under "FEES AND EXPENSES – Performance Fees Paid by Optimize Private Opportunities Funds".

None of the officers, directors or substantial security holders of Optimize has a significant interest in any Underlying Optimize Fund. Clients that hold Units of the Optimize Portfolio Funds are entitled to receive, on request and free of charge, the annual audited financial statements and interim financial statements of each Underlying Optimize Fund.

Optimize Income Portfolio Fund

The investment objective of the Optimize Income Portfolio Fund is to provide yield and maximize longterm total returns for investors by investing in a diversified portfolio of growth-oriented and incomeoriented investments, with an emphasis towards yield-oriented investments, across asset classes, sectors, and geographies, including fixed income securities and equity securities of North American and International public companies, ETFs, mutual funds, and other public diversified securities such as closed-end funds, as well as investments in private securities, private equity securities, and private credit securities.

The Fund is a "fund-of-funds" and invests up to 100% of its assets in the Optimize Private Opportunities Funds and the Optimize Core Funds (for these purposes, the "**Underlying Optimize Funds**"). The Fund selects Underlying Optimize Funds with a view to tracking, as closely as possible, the Optimize Income Portfolio. The current allocations of the Fund are set out in the Optimize Private Client Program Brochure. Optimize will rebalance the Fund from time to time in its discretion.

The Fund will invest in Class O and Class OUS Units of the OPO Funds and the Optimize Core Funds. These classes of Units do not pay Management Fees, however, Class O and Class OUS Units of the OPO Funds will pay the Manager Performance Fees as described under "FEES AND EXPENSES – Performance Fees Paid by Optimize Private Opportunities Funds".

None of the officers, directors or substantial security holders of Optimize has a significant interest in any Underlying Optimize Fund. Clients that hold Units of the Optimize Portfolio Funds are entitled to receive,

on request and free of charge, the annual audited financial statements and interim financial statements of each Underlying Optimize Fund.

General

The Funds generally will seek to remain fully invested. However, they may temporarily depart from their active strategies to hold cash and/or cash-equivalents for defensive purposes during unusual market conditions or to maintain liquidity. Any cash is expected to be held in short-term money market instruments.

As each Fund's portfolio is expected to include securities and assets that are not denominated in Canadian dollars, the Funds may invest in or use foreign exchange derivative instruments for the purposes of currency hedging in respect of assets that are not denominated in Canadian dollars.

Leverage

A Fund may borrow up to the Maximum Permitted Borrowing, being up to 50% of the total value of the assets of the Fund at the time such Fund enters into such borrowing or other transaction, in order to provide the liquidity required to take advantage of investment opportunities on a timely basis, to increase returns, to fund redemptions or repurchases of Units and for general operating purposes. The primary objective of such borrowing is to enhance the investment returns of the Fund and permit the Fund to be as fully invested in Underlying Investments as possible, while retaining the flexibility to take advantage of investment opportunities that arise from time to time. The cost of any such borrowing will be borne by the Fund and the assets of the Fund may serve as collateral for such borrowing.

Use of Derivative Instruments

A Fund may enter into derivative contracts intended to provide exposure to specified private equity or private credit investments that are not inconsistent with the investment restrictions, overall objective and strategy of such Fund. The Funds may engage in currency hedging through the use of exchange listed currency options to mitigate the risk of exchange rate fluctuations where a Fund has purchased or invested, or committed to invest, in an Underlying Investment denominated in a foreign currency to the extent that such activities are not inconsistent with such Fund's investment restrictions.

Foreign Currency Exposure

Class OWM Units and Class O Units are denominated in Canadian dollars, and Class OWMUS Units and Class OUS Units are denominated in U.S. dollars. The functional currency of the Funds is Canadian dollars. The exposure of the Canadian dollar denominated and U.S. dollar-denominated Classes of Units of the Fund is the same except that the returns (calculated in US dollars) to the U.S. dollar-denominated Classes of Units are subject to fluctuations in the Canadian to U.S. dollar exchange rate.

The Underlying Investments held in the portfolios of the Funds may be denominated in U.S. dollars and other foreign currencies and any return on such investments will be in the same currency. A fluctuation in the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar and in the Canadian dollar or U.S. dollar (as the case maybe) against other foreign currencies could cause the value of Underlying Investments to diminish or increase irrespective of performance.

The Funds may, but are not required to, hedge this risk through a program of currency risk management. Any costs and related liabilities and/or benefits relating to such hedging will be reflected in the Class Net Asset Value to which such hedging relates. The Manager does not currently expect to hedge the foreign currency exposures of the Funds.

Investment Restrictions

The investment activities of each Fund are conducted in accordance with its investment objectives and strategies set out above. In addition, each Fund is subject to certain investment restrictions that, among other things, limit the securities and investments a Fund may acquire to comprise its portfolio. Each Fund is subject to the following investment restrictions pursuant to which each Fund will not:

- (a) use leverage in excess of the Maximum Permitted Borrowing;
- (b) invest in securities of an issuer that is a foreign affiliate of the Fund for purposes of the Tax Act;
- (c) make any investments which are not Underlying Investments; or
- (d) purchase or sell derivative instruments, except as set out under "Use of Derivative Instruments" above.

Related and Connected Issuers

Securities laws require securities dealers and advisers, when they trade in or advise with respect to their own securities or securities in certain other issuers to which they, or certain other parties related to them, are related or connected, to do so only in accordance with particular disclosure and other rules. These rules require dealers and advisers, prior to trading with or advising their customers or clients, to inform them of the relevant relationship and connections with the issuer of the securities. Clients and customers should refer to the applicable provisions of these securities laws for the particulars of these rules and their rights or consult with a legal adviser.

The Optimize Funds are the only investment products that are managed and distributed by Optimize. The Optimize Funds are proprietary products and are related and connected issuers of Optimize, because Optimize is the trustee, investment fund manager and portfolio manager of the Funds and earns management fees and, in some cases, performance fees from the Funds, as described below under "FEES AND EXPENSES".

The Optimize Funds are the only related and connected issuers of Optimize.

When determining whether the Optimize Funds are suitable investments for clients in the Optimize Private Client Program, Optimize considers the return objectives, stability objectives, time horizon, liquidity needs and other relevant circumstances of the client, however, Optimize does not evaluate investments in the Funds against other funds managed by third parties which may be available to such investors and which may offer investment strategies similar to the Funds.

Generally, when determining which Model Portfolio is the most suitable for each client's Account(s) based on their Investment Policy, Licensed Optimize Representatives will select from among the Optimize Model Portfolios. Clients should understand that because all of the investment funds included in the Optimize Model Portfolios are proprietary products, the suitability determination conducted by your Licensed Optimize Representative will not consider the larger market of non-proprietary products or whether those non-proprietary products would be better, worse, or equal in meeting the client's investment needs and objectives.

MANAGEMENT OF THE FUNDS AND THE OPTIMIZE PRIVATE CLIENT PROGRAM

The Manager

Optimize Inc. is the Trustee and Manager of the Funds and is responsible for managing the day-to-day activities and affairs of the Funds and for making all investment decisions.

Optimize is a portfolio manager registered under the securities laws of Alberta, British Columbia, Manitoba, New Brunswick, Newfoundland and Labrador, Nova Scotia, Ontario, Quebec and Saskatchewan, an investment fund manager registered under the securities laws of Ontario and an exempt market dealer registered under the securities laws of British Columbia, Manitoba, Saskatchewan and Ontario. Optimize provides the Optimize Private Client Program in accordance with each client's Portfolio Management Agreement and Investment Policy. Generally, Optimize manages the Accounts of clients by investing each Account in the Model Portfolio which is most suitable for the Account.

The registered and head office of Optimize is 161 Bay Street, Unit 4510, Toronto, Ontario M5J 2S1. Its phone number is 1-866-209-6862. Optimize's website is <u>www.optimize.ca</u>, and we can be contacted by e-mail at <u>prosper@optimize.ca</u>.

Optimize was established in 2009 and provides investment advice and portfolio management services to its clients directly and to the Funds in accordance with the Funds' investment policies and procedures, and is ultimately responsible for making all investment decisions on behalf of the Funds

Optimize manages the Funds pursuant to the terms of the Declaration of Trust. Optimize is responsible for compliance with the investment objectives, strategies and restrictions of the Funds and to provide or arrange for the provision of all general administrative services related to the Funds.

The Declaration of Trust contains provisions regarding the resignation and replacement of Optimize as Trustee.

Directors and Senior Officers of the Manager

The name and municipality of residence, position and office held with Optimize and their principal occupation for the previous five years are as follows:

<u>Name and Municipality of</u> <u>Residence</u>	Office held with Optimize	Principal Occupation
Mathew McGrath Toronto, Ontario	Director, Chief Executive Officer and Advising Representative	Chief Executive Officer and Portfolio Manager of Optimize
Loretta Carbonelli Napanee Ontario	Chief Compliance Officer (CCO)	Chief Compliance Officer
Matthew Tomasic Vaughan, Ontario	Senior Vice President of Compliance and Advising Representative	Senior VP Compliance and Portfolio Manager of Optimize
Chris Coholan Burlington, Ontario	Executive VP Corporate Development and Advising Representative	Head of Corporate Development and Portfolio Manager of Optimize
Kevin Fobert Newmarket, Ontario	Senior Vice President of Investment Solutions and Associate Advising Representative	Senior VP of Investment Solutions and Associate Portfolio Manager of Optimize.

Mr. McGrath has held his current position since he founded Optimize in 2009. Ms. Carbonelli has held her current position with Optimize as CCO since 2023. Mr. Tomasic has held his current position since 2023, prior to that his position was Vice President of Trading and Operations since 2018. Mr. Coholan has held his position as Executive Vice President and Head of Corporate Development since 2021, and his position as Vice President of Corporate Development since 2018. Mr. Fobert has held his current position since 2018.

Optimize will manage the investment portfolios of the Funds in accordance with their stated investment objectives. Optimize is responsible for providing investment analysis and recommendations and for making investment decisions and placing orders to purchase and sell securities for the Funds. Optimize is qualified and approved by the regulatory authorities to advise managed accounts including the Funds.

Optimize serves as investment manager for other clients and will continue to do so. Optimize, its personnel and affiliates ("Affiliated Persons") may give advice or take action in performing their duties to other clients, or for their own accounts, that differ from advice given to or action taken for the Funds and the Accounts. Optimize is not obligated to buy, sell or recommend for the client any security or other investment that Optimize or its Affiliated Persons may buy, sell or recommend for any other client or for their own accounts. However, Optimize will ensure fairness in allocating investment opportunities amongst its clients.

Licensed Optimize Representatives

The following individuals are Licensed Optimize Representatives and are principally responsible for overseeing the day-to-day management of a material portion of the portfolios of the Funds:

<u>Name</u>	<u>Title</u>	<u>With Optimize</u> <u>Since</u>	<u>Business Experience</u> (past 5 years)
Matthew J. McGrath	Portfolio Manager	2009	Mr. McGrath founded Optimize in 2009 and has been managing investments since 1999. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree specializing in Finance from Queens University and is a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) charter holder.
David Ferreira	Portfolio Manager	2021	Mr. Ferreira has nearly ten years of industry experience which include analytical and portfolio management responsibilities at Fisher Investments and Edward Jones prior to working at Optimize. He holds a Bachelor's Degree specializing in Finance from the University of Western Ontario and is a CFA charter holder.
Kevin Fobert	Associate Portfolio Manager	2017	Mr. Fobert has over ten years of experience in asset allocation, security selection, and fundamental analysis, with a focus on identifying trends and opportunities in the market. He holds a BA in Economics from Trent University and holds the Chartered Investment Manager (CIM) designation.

In placing orders to buy and sell securities on behalf of the Optimize Funds, execution of orders is either divided pro rata or effected alternatively on a basis that is judged to be equitable by Optimize among all clients that are trading the securities. Investment decisions made by Licensed Optimize Representatives on behalf of the Optimize Funds are subject to the approval of the investment committee of Optimize, which includes Mr. McGrath, Mr. Ferreira and Mr. Fobert.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Optimize is registered to carry on business as an investment fund manager in the province of Ontario, a portfolio manager in the provinces of Alberta, British Columbia, New Brunswick, Nova Scotia, Ontario and Quebec and as an exempt market dealer in the provinces of British Columbia and Ontario. As a result, potential conflicts of interest could arise in connection with Optimize acting in all of these capacities.

Optimize is not required to devote all of its time and efforts to the Funds and the Accounts and Optimize may manage investments for limited partnerships, investment funds, trusts or managed accounts in addition to the Funds and the Accounts. Optimize and certain of its key personnel may therefore be subject to conflicting demands in respect of allocating management time, services and other functions. Optimize and its personnel have agreed that they will at all times devote sufficient time and resources to the Funds as is necessary and appropriate to fulfill all of Optimize's responsibilities to the Funds and the Accounts.

Fair Allocation of Investment Opportunities

Optimize manages the Accounts and the Funds. The Funds are different from and are managed separately from the Accounts. It is Optimize's policy to ensure that it deals fairly, honestly and in good faith when allocating investment opportunities (which includes securities traded on public exchanges, new issues, or participation in an initial public offering) across all Accounts so that no single Account or type of Account will receive preference in the allocation of investment opportunities. The principal determination when allocating investment opportunities among Accounts is the suitability of the transaction given each client's particular investment mandate.

In some instances, transactions which will affect more than one Account may be bulked together and may be executed as one block trade. Once the block trade is completed, or partially completed if the order needs to be executed over more than one trading day, each Account which was part of that block trade will be given its pro-rata share of the order so that all Accounts which were part of the block trade transact at the same price and pay the same rate of commission. If a block trade is completed using more than one Dealer, which results in materially different prices and/or different commission rates, then Accounts which were part of the block trade will be allocated their pro-rata share from each of the separate trades.

The Optimize Private Client Program generally invests Accounts using the Funds and the Model Portfolios, which enhances the ability for Optimize to allocate trades fairly and ensure that similarly situated clients receive similar investment opportunities for their Accounts.

Related and Connected Issuers

The Funds are related and connected issuers of Optimize. Please see our discussion under "INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND RESTRICTIONS OF THE OPTIMIZE FUNDS -Related and Connected Issuers"

Personal Trading

Optimize has adopted a policy intended to restrict and monitor all personal trading by the employees of Optimize in order to prevent, detect and mitigate conflicts between such personal trading and the interests of the Funds and the Accounts. Failure to comply with this policy is cause for disciplinary action up to, and including, immediate dismissal.

Referral Arrangements

Optimize may enter into referral arrangements whereby it pays a fee for the referral of a client to Optimize or to one of the Funds it manages. No such payments will be made unless the referred investors are first advised of the arrangement and all applicable securities laws are complied with.

No advice on Real Estate or Alternative Assets

Optimize does not offer any advice on direct mortgages or direct investments in real estate, private equity or other alternative asset classes, except to the extent that investments in mortgages, real estate, private equity or other alternative asset classes are included in the portfolios of the Optimize Private Opportunities Funds, as described under "INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND RESTRICTIONS OF THE OPTIMIZE FUNDS - Optimize Premium Yield Fund and Optimize Growth Equity Fund"

Optimize is not licensed as a mortgage broker or a real estate broker. Any opinion or statement made by Optimize or by any of its employees or representatives that relates to direct mortgages or direct investments in real estate, private equity or other alternative asset classes should not be relied upon. Clients in need of specific advice regarding direct mortgages or direct investments in real estate, private equity or other alternative asset classes should consult with a lawyer, mortgage broker, real estate broker, and other professionals outside of Optimize or any of its related companies or its representatives.

Tax Returns and Wills

As part of its financial planning services, Optimize provides professional accounting services to assist clients with the completion of their annual tax returns and professional legal services to assist clients to complete their wills. These services are offered as a complement to Optimize's core investment advisory services and may be provided by Optimize's in-house professionals or outsourced as needed. Aside from the provision of specific, professional services of preparing tax returns and wills, Optimize does not provide tax planning or estate planning services or advice or other accounting or legal services.

Soft Dollar Arrangements

Optimize does not engage in Soft dollar arrangements. order.

Relationship Disclosure Information

Please review the Relationship Disclosure Information and the Conflicts of Interest Brochure for further information regarding the conflicts of interest which may arise when Optimize provides services to Accounts, Optimize's complaint handling process and other important information.

FEES AND EXPENSES

Management Fees

Pursuant to the Declaration of Trust, Optimize is entitled to receive from the Fund an annual fee, calculated and paid monthly in advance, based on the NAV of each Class or Series of outstanding Units of each Fund, as set out below.

Management Fees are calculated as of the Valuation Date that immediately precedes the commencement of the month in respect of which the fee is payable, plus any applicable taxes. Management Fees are paid on the first business day of each month. Management Fees may be paid in Units or in cash, at the option of Optimize.

The only Classes of Units of the Funds which may be held in Accounts are Class OWM Units and Class OWM-US Units. The annual Management Fees payable by Class OWM and Class OWM-US Units of all Funds is an amount equal to 0.70% of Net Asset Value of the Class.

The only Classes of Units of the Funds which may be held in Portfolio Funds are Class O Units and Class O-US Units. No Management Fees are payable by Class O and Class O-US Units of any Funds. As a result, Accounts that hold Units of Portfolio Funds do not bear duplicative Management Fees.

Account Level Fees

Pursuant to the Portfolio Management Agreement, Optimize is entitled to receive annual Account Level Fees (as defined in the Portfolio Management Agreement) for the services provided to the Account. Account Level Fees are calculated annually but charged monthly, in advance, to the Accounts on a prorated basis. Account Level fees payable in respect of the Class OWM and Class OWM-US Units of the Funds are in the range of 0% to 1.70% of the Net Asset Value of the Units in the Account.

Account Level Fees compensate Optimize for the asset allocation services provided by each client's Licensed Optimize Representative which result in Model Portfolio selection and Account rebalancing, as well as a full suite of supplementary services that are provided to all clients in the Optimize Private Client Program, including financial planning and tax return preparation.

As a result, total annual fees collected by Optimize in respect of the Optimize Funds held by clients of the Optimize Private Client Program includes both Management Fees (at the Fund level) and Account Level Fees amounting to total annual fees in the range of 0.70% to 2.40% of the Net Asset Value of the Class OWM and/or Class OWM US Units held in the Account. In addition to Management Fees and Account Level Fees, performance fees are payable by the OPO Funds as described below.

Each client will receive specific disclosure of total Management Fees and Account Level Fees payable to Optimize in respect of each Optimize Fund held in their Account, and the proportions of such Funds in their Model Portfolio.

Performance Fees Paid by Optimize Private Opportunities Funds

In addition to Management Fees, Optimize Premium Yield Fund and Optimize Growth Equity Fund will pay to Optimize a performance fee with respect to the Class OWM Units, the Class OWM-US Units, the Class O Units, and the Class O-US Units of the OPO Funds which will be calculated and accrued weekly and be paid quarterly (the "**Performance Fee**") (plus applicable taxes, if any). The Performance Fee is calculated on a Series by-Series and Class-by-Class basis. The Performance Fee for a calendar quarter

in respect of each Series of Units shall be equal to 20% of the positive difference ("**Series Excess Amount**"), if any, between the Series Net Asset Value per Unit of such Series of Units and the Series High-Water Mark (as defined below) for each such Series of Units calculated on such Valuation Date.

"Series High-Water Mark" for a Series of Units as at any date means, initially, its subscription price, and thereafter shall be adjusted from time to time to equal its Series Net Asset Value immediately following the payment of a Performance Fee in respect of such Series of Units.

In order to ensure a fair allocation of fees and expenses and a fair allocation of distributions to Unitholders, each Fund utilizes a "series accounting methodology" whereby a separate Series of each Class of Units is issued as of each Subscription Date bearing a designation which corresponds to the time at which the particular Units were issued. As of the last Valuation Date in each quarter, each outstanding Series of each Class of Units will be consolidated into the Base Series as described under "VALUATION AND NET ASSET VALUE - Calculation of Net Asset Value of the Funds – Series Roll Up".

If Units are redeemed during the quarter, the Performance Fee which has accrued up to the applicable Valuation Date is deducted from the redemption proceeds payable to the Account and is payable to Optimize at the next Valuation Date. Performance Fees are calculated at each Valuation Date and carried as a liability of the Fund until paid to Optimize, as the case may be, on a quarterly basis or on the redemption of Units in respect of which such Performance Fees are payable.

Manager's Lien

Any and all amounts payable to Optimize under the Declaration of Trust are to be a first charge on the capital of the applicable Fund and the income thereof and shall be payable out of the income and, to the extent that the income shall be insufficient, out of the capital, of the applicable Fund. The Manager has a lien upon the assets of the applicable Fund to enforce payment of such amounts for which it is entitled to be paid or to be indemnified under the provisions of the Declaration of Trust.

Administration Fees and Expenses

Optimize has the power to determine from time to time the establishment and operating expenses of the Funds.

Each Fund is responsible for the costs of establishing the Fund and distributing the Units, including but without limitation, the fees and expenses of legal counsel to the Funds and the Funds' auditors.

Each Fund will pay for all expenses incurred in connection with its ongoing operation and administration. These expenses include: trading costs, mailing and printing expenses for periodic reports to Unitholders; fees payable to the Custodian for acting as custodian of the assets of the Funds including related expenses for electronic mail facilities and publications on Optimize's website; due diligence costs incurred for the purpose of verifying the reported net asset value of Underlying Funds; fees payable to the Administrator of the Units for performing certain financial, record-keeping, Unitholder reporting and general administrative services; fees payable to the auditor, accountants, valuators, legal advisors and other professional advisors and professional service providers of the Funds; fees and expenses incurred in connection with sourcing, reviewing, completing, monitoring and exiting investments for the Funds, including in respect of potential investments which are not completed; debt service fees (including set-up and commitment fees); taxes; insurance premiums; ongoing regulatory filing fees and other fees; expenses relating to litigation, indemnification or the enforcement and protection of rights relating to the Funds; expenses incurred pursuant to the terms of the agreements governing the Underlying Investments

and related agreements; extraordinary expenses (in addition to normal day to day operating expenses); any fees or expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of additional Units of the Funds (including agency fees and sales commissions); any reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by Optimize or its agents in connection with their ongoing obligations to the Funds; costs and expenses of preparing, printing, and mailing financial and other reports to Unitholders, material for Unitholders' meetings and securities regulatory filings; costs and expenses of investor relations activities, including meetings and communication with Unitholders; costs and expenses arising as a result of complying with all applicable securities legislation and other applicable laws, regulations and policies; and any expenditures that may be incurred upon the termination of a Fund, but excluding the fees payable to Optimize. Such expenses also include expenses of any action, suit or other proceedings in which or in relation to which Optimize, any sub-advisor, the Custodian or Optimize and/or any of their respective officers, directors, employees, consultants or agents is entitled to indemnity by a Fund.

Underlying Investment Expense

The Funds are also subject to fees and expenses paid to or incurred by or in respect of Underlying Investments including management fees and, in some instances, carried interest or other performancebased fees payable to the managers of those investments. Any management fees, carried interest or performance fees paid by the Funds in respect of any such Underlying Investments will not be offset against any fees paid to Optimize.

DISTRIBUTIONS

Each Fund intends to make distributions to Unitholders of net income and net realized capital gains of the Fund on the last business day of December, with the potential for additional distributions to be paid from time to time at the sole discretion of Optimize. Unless Optimize has received notice from a Unitholder that it wishes to receive all or part of any distribution in cash, each Unitholder will be deemed to have given notice that it wishes to reinvest all distributions of net income or net capital gains by way of acquisition of additional Units. Distributions may consist of net income, net realized capital gains and/or returns of capital. The amount and timing of all distributions will be subject to the discretion of Optimize.

In accordance with the Declaration of Trust, the net income of a Fund for any period for distribution purposes shall generally be determined in accordance with the provisions of the Tax Act regarding the calculation of income for the purposes of determining the "taxable income" of the Funds thereunder, with certain adjustments including that capital gains and capital losses (other than business investment losses) shall be excluded. The net realized capital gains of a Fund for any fiscal year shall generally equal the amount, if any, by which the aggregate of the capital gains of such Fund in the year exceeds the aggregate of the capital losses available to the Fund in the year (other than business investment losses).

The actual amount of distributions will be subject to the discretion of Optimize. The amount and timing of distributions may depend upon a number of factors, including, among others, the applicable Fund's actual results of operations and financial condition, the timing of the investment of the applicable Fund's capital, the amount of returns that are generated by the Fund's investments, available opportunities for reinvestment, restrictions imposed by the terms of any indebtedness that is incurred to leverage the Fund's investments, levels of operating and other expenses, contingent liabilities, factors affecting the willingness or ability of the Underlying Funds to make distributions to the Fund and other factors that Optimize deems relevant.

The aggregate distributions of net income and net realized capital gains made in each taxation year of a Fund will be such amount as is sufficient to ensure that the Fund is not liable for ordinary income tax

thereon under the Tax Act, except to the extent that any tax payable on net realized capital gains of the Fund for a taxation year that are retained by the Fund would be recoverable by it in respect of such year.

If, in any taxation year, there would otherwise remain in a Fund additional net income or net realized capital gains, the Fund will automatically make payable on the last day of such taxation year a special distribution in additional Units of such portion of the remaining net income and net realized capital gains as is necessary to ensure that the Fund will not be liable for ordinary income tax thereon under the Tax Act.

Each client, in their capacity as a Unitholder of a Fund (excluding Units held in a Registered Plan), will be mailed annually information in respect of the previous taxation year necessary to enable such Unitholder to complete an income tax return with respect to amounts paid or payable by the applicable Fund in respect of the preceding taxation year of such Fund.

Clients should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the Canadian and other tax considerations applicable to them relating to distributions.

VALUATION AND NET ASSET VALUE

Calculation of Net Asset Value of the Funds

The Administrator has been appointed by Optimize to calculate the Net Asset Value of the Funds. The Net Asset Value, the Class Net Asset Value and the Class Net Asset Value per Unit shall be computed by the Administrator in the general manner described below as at the Valuation Time on each Valuation Date.

The Net Asset Value of a Fund on a Valuation Date will be equal to the difference between the aggregate value of the assets of the Fund and the aggregate value of the liabilities of the Fund on that date. The Net Asset Value of a Fund will include any net income, net realized capital gains and other amounts payable to Unitholders on or before such date, and before giving effect to any redemptions or issuances of Units to be implemented as of such date and not yet paid. The number of outstanding Units of a particular Class on a Valuation Date does not include Units of that Class to be issued (including by way of reinvestment of distributions by a Fund) on such date but does include outstanding Units of that Series for which the amounts payable for redemption are to be determined on such date.

The Class Net Asset Value of a Class of Units is computed by subtracting the liabilities of a Fund referable specifically to that Class of Units from that Class of Units' proportionate share of the difference between the value of the Fund Property (as defined in the Declaration of Trust) and the Common Expenses. The Class Net Asset Value per Unit is determined by dividing the Class Net Asset Value by the number of outstanding Units of such Class (determined before giving effect to any reinvestment of net income, net realized capital gains or other distributions then payable to Unitholders and before giving effect to any redemptions or issuances of Units to be implemented as of such date) as determined from time to time.

The Class Net Asset Value a Class of Units which is denominated in U.S. dollars will be converted to U.S. dollars based on the applicable exchange rate on such date and rounded to four decimal places.

Optimize has the power to determine from time to time the Class Expenses and the Common Expenses of a Fund.

Optimize may provide or make available estimates of the Net Asset Value or the Class Net Asset Value of any Class of Units of a Fund from time to time. Such estimates, if provided or made available, are for

informational purposes only and should not be relied upon or used for any other purpose as they may differ materially from the actual Net Asset Value or Class Net Asset Value calculated by the Fund Administrator in accordance with the procedures described herein.

Series Accounting for Optimize Private Opportunities Funds

The "Series Net Asset Value" of a Series of Units of the OPO Funds, as of any date, shall equal the Class Net Asset Value as of such date attributable to the Series, less an amount equal to the total Series liabilities as of such date. The "Series Net Asset Value per Unit" shall be computed by the Administrator as at each Valuation Date by dividing the applicable Series Net Asset Value by the total number of Units of such Series then outstanding on such Valuation Date, prior to any issuance or redemption of Units of such Series to be processed by Optimize immediately following such calculation.

At the end of each fiscal quarter, each Series within a Class of Units of an OPO Fund which have a positive difference between the Series Net Asset Value per Unit of such Series of Units and the Series High-Water Mark, other than the Base Series of the Class, will be re-designated and converted into the Base Series (a "**Series Roll Up**") by amending the Series Net Asset Value per Unit of all such Series at such time so that they are the same, and consolidating or subdividing the number of Units of each such Series so that the aggregate Series Net Asset Value of the Series of Units subject to the Series Roll Up held by a Unitholder does not change. The Series Roll Up will be effected at the prevailing Series Net Asset Value per Unit of the Base Series of Units.

REDEMPTIONS OF UNITS

Under the Declaration of Trust, Units of the Funds may be redeemed on the Redemption Date specified in the table below for a redemption price per Unit equal to the Series Net Asset Value per Unit determined on the Redemption Date, less any transaction costs incurred by the Fund in funding the redemption.

Fund	Redemption Date
Optimize Premium Income Fund	The last business day of each quarter, or more frequently as determined by the Manager. Currently, the Manager has agreed to process redemptions as of the last business day of each week.
Optimize Growth Equity Fund	The last business day of each quarter, or more frequently as determined by the Manager. Currently, the Manager has agreed to process redemptions as of the last business day of each week.
Optimize Core Equity Fund	The last business day of each week.
Optimize Global Equity Fund	The last business day of each week.
Optimize Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund	The last business day of each week.
Optimize Diversified Income Fund	The last business day of each week.
Optimize Money Market Fund	The last business day of each week.
Optimize All Growth Portfolio Fund	The last business day of each week.

Fund	Redemption Date
Optimize Growth Balanced Portfolio Fund	The last business day of each week.
Optimize Balanced Growth Portfolio Fund	The last business day of each week.
Optimize Income Balanced Portfolio Fund	The last business day of each week.
Optimize Income Portfolio Fund	The last business day of each week.

There are no redemption fees payable on Class OWM, Class OWM-US, Class O or Class O-US Units of the Optimize Funds.

Any unpaid distribution payable on or before the applicable Redemption Date in respect of Units tendered for redemption as of such Redemption Date will also be paid on the applicable Redemption Payment Date. A Fund may designate a portion of the redemption price for Units tendered for redemption as a distribution of net realized taxable capital gains to redeeming Unitholders. Taxable capital gains so designated must be included in the income of the redeeming Unitholder, and may be deductible by the Fund in computing its income subject to certain limitations in the Tax Act.

Suspension of Redemptions

Optimize may direct a Fund to suspend the redemption of its Units or payment of redemption proceeds for any period not exceeding 365 days during which Optimize determines that conditions exist which render impractical the sale of assets of the Fund or which impair the ability of Optimize to determine the value of the assets of the Fund. Such conditions may include (but are not limited to) changes affecting the financial markets, debt markets or private equity markets generally (or a segment thereof) or a material adverse change in the business and affairs of a Fund. The suspension may apply, in the discretion of Optimize, to all requests for redemption received prior to the suspension but as to which payment has not been made, as well as to all requests received while the suspension is in effect. Optimize will notify clients when the suspension of redemptions is effected and the reason that redemptions have been suspended. The suspension has ceased to exist provided that no other condition under which a suspension is authorized then exists. To the extent not inconsistent with official rules and regulations promulgated by any governmental body having jurisdiction over a Fund, any declaration of suspension made by Optimize is conclusive.

UNITS OF THE FUNDS

Classes and Series

Each Fund is an investment trust established under the laws of the Province of Ontario pursuant to the Declaration of Trust.

An investment in a Fund is represented by Units of the Fund. Under the Declaration of Trust, the Trustee is authorized to establish an unlimited number of Classes of Units of each Fund, and an unlimited number of Series of each Class. Each Fund has authorized for issuance eight different Classes of Units, four of which are denominated in Canadian dollars and four of which are denominated in U.S. dollars, however,

in connection with the Optimize Private Client Program, each Fund will only issue four Classes of Units: Class OWM, Class OWM-US, Class O and Class O-US.

The only Classes of Units of the Funds which will be held in Accounts are Class OWM and Class OWM-US Units. The only Classes of Units which will be held by the Portfolio Funds are Class O and Class O-US Units. Other than the currency differences described below, the only differences between these Classes of Units are that Class OWM and Class OWM-US Units pay Management Fees, while and Class O and Class O-US do not pay Management Fees, rather, the Portfolio Funds which hold such Class O and Class O-US Units pay Management Fees, in each case as described under described under "FEES AND EXPENSES – Management Fees".

Foreign Currency Exposure

Class OWM and Class O Units are denominated in Canadian dollars, while Class OWM-US and Class O-US Units are denominated in U.S. dollars. The functional currency of the Funds is Canadian dollars. The exposure of the Canadian dollar denominated and U.S. dollar-denominated Classes of Units of the Funds are the same except that the returns (calculated in US dollars) to the U.S. dollar-denominated Classes of Units is subject to fluctuations in the Canadian to U.S. dollar exchange rate. See "INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND RESTRICTIONS OF THE OPTIMIZE FUNDS - Foreign Currency Exposure"

Attributes of the Units

Units of each Fund have the following attributes:

- a) the Units have no voting rights except in respect of a Unitholder meeting called in accordance with the Fund's Declaration of Trust;
- b) on the dissolution of a Fund, each Unitholder will be entitled to their proportionate share of the net assets of the Fund attributable their Class and, if applicable, Series of Units;
- c) there are no conversion rights;
- d) there are no pre-emptive rights;
- e) the Units of a Fund cannot be transferred except in limited circumstances;
- f) the Trustee and Manager may re-designate Units of one Class as Units of another Class in accordance with the Declaration of Trust;
- g) there is no liability for further calls or assessments;
- h) fractions of Units, to four decimal places, may be issued and such fractional Units shall have attached thereto the rights, restrictions, conditions and limitations attaching to whole Units in the proportion that they bear to a whole Unit including rights, restrictions, conditions and limitations with respect to receipt of distributions, redemption of Units and liquidation of a Fund.

Clients can request a copy of the Declaration of Trust of the Funds which provides full details regarding all attributes of the Units. See "DECLARATION OF TRUST".

CERTAIN INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following is a summary of the principal Canadian federal income tax considerations with respect to the acquisition, ownership and disposition of Units generally relevant to Unitholders who are individuals (other than trusts) and who, at all relevant times, for purposes of the Tax Act, are resident in Canada, deal at arm's length with and are not affiliated with the Fund and hold their Units as capital property. This summary assumes that no Unitholder has entered or will enter into a "derivative forward agreement" as defined in the Tax Act with respect to their Units. This summary is based upon the facts set out in this Optimize Fund Disclosure Document, the current provisions of the Tax Act and the regulations thereunder, Optimize's understanding of the current administrative policies and assessing practices of the Canada Revenue Agency ("CRA") published in writing prior to the date hereof, and the specific proposals to amend the Tax Act and regulations thereunder publicly announced prior to the date hereof by the Minister of Finance (Canada) ("Proposed Amendments"). No assurances can be given that the Proposed Amendments will become law as proposed or at all.

This summary is also based on the assumptions that a Fund, together with affiliated and related parties (within the meaning of the Tax Act), will not be entitled to more than 10% of the income of any partnership (or assets in the case of a winding up of a partnership), that none of the issuers of the securities held by a Fund will be a foreign affiliate (within the meaning of the Tax Act) of the Fund or of any Unitholder, and that none of the securities held by a Fund will be (i) a "tax shelter investment" within the meaning of the Tax Act; (ii) an "offshore investment fund property" that would require the Fund to include significant amounts in the Fund's income pursuant to section 94.1 of the Tax Act; or (iii) an interest in a non-resident trust which would require the Fund to include amounts in income in connection with such interest pursuant to section 94.2 of the Tax Act.

This summary also assumes that a Fund was not established and will not be maintained primarily for the benefit of non-residents of Canada for purposes of the Tax Act.

This summary is not exhaustive of all possible federal income tax considerations and does not take into account or anticipate any changes in law, whether by legislative, governmental or judicial action, other than the Proposed Amendments. This summary does not deal with other federal, foreign, territorial or provincial income tax considerations, which might differ from the federal considerations summarized herein.

This summary is of a general nature only and does not constitute legal or tax advice to any particular investor. Prospective investors are advised to consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequences to them of a prospective investment in Units in their individual circumstances.

Status of the Funds

Each Fund qualifies as a mutual fund trust under the Tax Act and this summary assumes that each Fund will continue to so qualify at all times.

Under the Tax Act, certain trusts(defined as "**SIFT trusts**"), investments (including securities) in which are listed or traded on a stock exchange or other public market, and that hold one or more "non-portfolio properties" (as defined in the Tax Act), are effectively taxed on income and capital gains in respect of such non-portfolio properties at combined rates comparable to the rates that apply to income earned and distributed by taxable Canadian corporations. Distributions of such income received by unitholders of SIFT trusts are treated as eligible dividends from a taxable Canadian corporation. This summary assumes that no Fund will at any time be a SIFT trust.

If a Fund were not to qualify as a mutual fund trust or were to be a SIFT trust, the income tax consequences described below would in some respects be materially and adversely different.

Taxation of the Funds

Each Fund must calculate its net income, including net taxable capital gains, in Canadian dollars, for each taxation year according to the rules in the Tax Act. The taxation year of each Fund will generally be the period ending December 31 of each year. A Fund is subject to tax in each taxation year under Part I of the Tax Act on the amount of its income for the year computed pursuant to the Tax Act, including net realized taxable capital gains, less the portion thereof that is deductible in respect of the amount paid or payable to Unitholders in the year. Net capital losses realized by a Fund in a taxation year may be used to offset capital gains realized by the Fund in future years subject to certain limitations. Income tax paid by a Fund on certain net realized capital gains not paid or payable to its Unitholders is recoverable by the Fund to the extent and in the circumstances provided in the Tax Act.

A Fund will be required to include in its income for a taxation year all dividends received in the year on shares of corporations.

A Fund will also be required to include in its income for each taxation year in respect of debt obligations held by the Fund all interest that accrues to it to the end of the year, that becomes receivable or is received by the Fund before the end of the taxation year, except to the extent that such interest was already included in computing its income for a preceding taxation year. A Fund is also required to include in the calculation of its income for each year an amount as notional interest accrued on strip bonds, zero-coupon bonds and certain other prescribed debt obligations held by the Fund, even though the Fund is not entitled to receive interest on such debt obligations.

In computing its income for tax purposes and subject to certain limitations, a Fund may generally deduct reasonable administrative and other expenses incurred to earn income, including interest on borrowed funds to the extent such funds are used to purchase securities for the Fund's portfolio. A Fund may not deduct interest on borrowed funds to the extent such funds are used to fund redemptions. Proposed Amendments released by the Minister of Finance (Canada) on November 3, 2022 (revising prior proposals to amend the Tax Act released on February 4, 2022) would restrict the deductibility of certain interest and other financing expenses. These proposals are in draft form and were subject to a public comment period ending January 6, 2023. Optimize intends to monitor the progress of these proposals and assess their potential impact on the Funds in the form they are enacted, should this occur.

A Fund may invest directly, or through one or more partnerships, in securities that are not denominated in Canadian dollars. Cost, proceeds of disposition of securities, distributions, interest and all other amounts will be determined for the purposes of the Tax Act in Canadian dollars. A Fund may realize gains or losses by virtue of the fluctuation in the value of foreign currencies relative to Canadian dollars. Foreign source income received by a Fund will generally be net of any taxes withheld in the foreign jurisdiction. The foreign taxes so withheld will be included in the calculation of the Fund's income for purposes of the Tax Act.

Gains and losses realized on futures, forward contracts, options and other derivatives may be treated as ordinary income and loss or as capital gains and capital losses, depending on the circumstances. Generally, a Fund will include gains and deduct losses in connection with its derivatives activities that are a substitute for direct investment on income account and will recognize such gains or losses for tax purposes at the time they are realized by the Fund. Where a Fund uses derivatives to hedge foreign currency exposure with respect to securities held on capital account, and such derivatives are sufficiently

linked with such securities and the derivatives are not subject to the derivative forward agreement rules (the "**DFA Rules**") discussed below, gains or losses realized on such derivatives will be treated as capital gains or losses.

The DFA Rules in the Tax Act deem gains on the settlement of certain forward agreements (described as "**derivative forward agreements**") to be included in ordinary income rather than treated as capital gains. Under the DFA Rules, the return on any derivative entered into by a Fund that is a "derivative forward agreement" within the meaning of the Tax Act will be taxed as ordinary income rather than capital gains.

The Funds are subject to the suspended loss rules contained in the Tax Act. A loss realized on a disposition of capital property by a Fund is considered to be a suspended loss if the Fund (or a person affiliated with the Fund for the purposes of the Tax Act) acquires a property (a "**substituted property**") that is the same as or identical to the property sold, within 30 days before and 30 days after the disposition and owns the substituted property 30 days after the original disposition. If a loss is suspended, the applicable Fund cannot deduct the loss from the Fund's capital gains until the substituted property is sold and is not reacquired within 30 days before and after the sale, which may increase the amount of net realized capital gains of the Fund to be made payable to its Unitholders.

Each Fund generally intends to make distributions in each year of its net income including net realized capital gains as described under the heading "DISTRIBUTIONS" to the extent required so that it will not be liable in such year for income tax under Part I of the Tax Act other than such tax on net realized capital gains that would be recoverable by it in such year.

Taxation of Unitholders

A Unitholder of a Fund will generally be required to include in the calculation of the Unitholder's income for a taxation year under the Tax Act the net income and the net realized taxable capital gains of the Fund paid or payable to the Unitholder in the year or deemed so paid or payable. U.S. dollar distributions must be converted into Canadian dollars.

To the extent that distributions by a Fund to a Unitholder in any taxation year exceed the net income including net realized capital gains of the Fund for the year computed pursuant to the Tax Act, such distributions generally will not be included in the calculation of the Unitholder's income for the year but will reduce the adjusted cost base of the Unitholder's Units. If the adjusted cost base of a Unitholder's Units is reduced to less than zero, the Unitholder will be deemed to realize an immediate capital gain equal to the negative amount and the Unitholder's adjusted cost base will be increased to zero.

Optimize will designate to the extent permitted by the Tax Act the portion of the net income distributed to Unitholders of a Fund as may reasonably be considered to consist of net realized taxable capital gains of the Fund net of net capital loss carry forwards, and the taxable dividends (including eligible dividends) received, or deemed to be received, by the Fund on shares of taxable Canadian corporations and foreign source income of the Fund. Any such designated amount will be deemed for purposes of the Tax Act to be received or realized by Unitholders in the year as a taxable capital gain or taxable dividend from a taxable Canadian corporation or foreign source income, as the case may be. To the extent that amounts are designated as taxable dividends from taxable Canadian corporations, the normal gross-up and dividend tax credit rules will apply, including an enhanced gross-up and dividend tax credit in respect of "eligible dividends" designated as such. In addition, provided that appropriate designations are made by Optimize in respect of foreign income or gains of a Fund, for the purpose of computing any foreign tax credit available to a Unitholder of a Fund, and subject to the rules in the Tax Act, the Unitholder will be

deemed to have paid as tax to the government of a foreign country the Unitholder's share of the taxes paid or considered to be paid by the Fund to that country.

Any loss of a Fund for purposes of the Tax Act cannot be allocated to, and cannot be treated as the loss of, a Unitholder.

Under the Tax Act, a trust is permitted to deduct in computing its income an amount which is less than the amount of its distributions. This enables a Fund to utilize, in a particular taxation year, losses from prior years without affecting the ability of the Fund to distribute its income annually. The amount distributed to a Unitholder but not deducted by a Fund will not be required to be included in the income of the Unitholder. However, unless such amount relates to the non-taxable portion of capital gains, the taxable portion of which has been designated and allocated to the Unitholder, the adjusted cost base of the Unitholder's Units would be reduced by such amount.

Class Net Asset Value per Unit will reflect any income and gains of the Fund that have accrued or have been realized but not made payable at the time Units are acquired. Consequently, Unitholders that acquire additional Units may become taxable on their share of income and gains of a Fund that accrued or were realized before the Units were acquired and not made payable at such time.

Upon the actual or deemed disposition of a Unit of a Fund, including on a sale or redemption, a capital gain (or capital loss) will generally be realized by the Unitholder to the extent that the Unitholder's proceeds of disposition exceed (or are less than) the aggregate of the adjusted cost base to the Unitholder of the Unit and any reasonable costs of disposition. In general, the adjusted cost base of all Units of a class held by a Unitholder is the total amount paid for such Units less any non-taxable distributions (other than the non-taxable portion of capital gains, the taxable portion of which was designated by the Fund) such as a return of capital, and less the adjusted cost base of any Units of that class previously redeemed by the Unitholder. The cost of Units acquired as a distribution of income or capital gains will generally be equal to the amount of the distribution. For the purpose of determining the adjusted cost base to a Unitholder when a Unit is acquired, the cost of the newly-acquired Unit will be averaged with the adjusted cost base of all of the Units of that class owned by the Unitholder as capital property before that time.

One-half of any capital gains ("**taxable capital gains**") realized will be included in computing the income of a Unitholder and one-half of any capital loss ("**allowable capital loss**") realized must be deducted against taxable capital gains in the same taxation year. Allowable capital losses in excess of taxable capital gains in the year may be carried back three years or forward indefinitely for deduction against taxable capital gains realized in those years in accordance with the provisions of the Tax Act.

In certain situations where a Unitholder disposes of a Unit of a Fund and would otherwise realize a capital loss, the loss will be denied. This may occur if the Unitholder, the Unitholder's spouse or a person affiliated with the Unitholder for purposes of the Tax Act acquires Units of the Fund within 30 days before or after the Unitholder disposes of the Unit which are considered to be "substituted property". In these circumstances, the capital loss may be deemed to be a "superficial loss" and denied. The amount of the denied capital loss would generally be added to the adjusted cost base of the Units which are "substituted property".

Individuals (other than certain trusts) are subject to an alternative minimum tax. Net income of a Fund paid or payable to a Unitholder that is designated as dividends received on shares of taxable Canadian corporations or net realized taxable capital gains or taxable capital gains realized on the disposition of Units of a Fund may give rise to liability for such minimum tax. The 2023 federal Budget proposes

amendment to the alternative minimum tax including to increase the tax rate, raise the exemption and broaden the base for taxation years that begin after 2023.

Taxation of Registered Plans

Amounts of income and capital gains distributed by the Fund to a Registered Plan, and capital gains realized by a Registered Plan on a disposition of Units, are generally not taxable under Part I of the Tax Act while retained in the Registered Plan, provided that the Units are qualified investments for the Registered Plan. See "ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT".

International Information Reporting

Pursuant to the Intergovernmental Agreement for the Enhanced Exchange of Tax Information under the Canada-U.S. Tax Convention entered into by Canada and the U.S. (the **IGA**) and related Canadian legislation found in Part XVIII of the Tax Act, Unitholders will be required to provide their dealer with information related to their citizenship or residence for tax purposes and, if applicable, a U.S. federal tax identification number, or in the case of certain entities with such information relating to their controlling persons. If a Unitholder does not provide the information or is identified as, or in the case of certain entities as having one or more controlling persons who is, a "Specified U.S. Person", as defined under the IGA (including U.S. citizens who are residents of Canada), certain account information and personal identifying details of the Unitholder (and, if applicable, of such controlling persons) will generally be reported to the CRA, unless the investment is held within a Registered Plan. The CRA will then provide the information to the U.S. Internal Revenue Service.

In addition, pursuant to Part XIX of the Tax Act implementing the Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development Common Reporting Standard (the **CRS Rules**), Canadian financial institutions are required to have procedures in place to identify accounts held by tax residents of foreign countries other than the U.S. (**Reportable Jurisdictions**) or by certain entities any of whose "controlling persons" are tax residents of Reportable Jurisdictions. The CRS Rules provide that Canadian financial institutions must report required information to the CRA annually. Such information will be available to be exchanged by the CRA on a reciprocal, bilateral basis with Reportable Jurisdictions in which the account holders or such controlling persons are tax resident under the provisions and safeguards of the Multilateral Convention on Mutual Administrative Assistance in Tax Matters or the relevant bilateral tax treaty. Under the CRS Rules, Unitholders of a Fund will be required to provide required information regarding their investment in the Fund to their dealer for the purpose of such information exchange, unless the investment is held within a Registered Plan.

ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT

Provided that each Fund qualifies as a mutual fund trust within the meaning of the Tax Act at all relevant times, the Units will be qualified investments under the Tax Act for registered retirement savings plans (including locked-in retirement accounts) ("**RRSP**"), registered retirement income funds (including locked-in retirement income funds) ("**RRIF**"), registered disability savings plans ("**RDSP**"), registered education savings plans ("**RESP**"), tax-free savings accounts ("**TFSA**"), first home savings accounts ("**FHSA**") and deferred profit sharing plans (collectively, "**Registered Plans**").

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the case of a TFSA, RRSP, RESP, RDSP, RRIF or FHSA if the holder of the TFSA, RDSP or FHSA, the subscriber of the RESP or the annuitant of the RRSP or RRIF (a **controlling individual**) holds a "significant interest" in a Fund, or if such controlling individual does not deal at arm's length with a Fund for purposes of the Tax Act, the Units of such Fund will generally be a

"prohibited investment" for such TFSA, RRSP, RESP, RDSP, RRIF or FHSA. If Units of a Fund are a "prohibited investment" for a TFSA, RRSP, RESP, RDSP, RRIF or FHSA that acquires such Units, the controlling individual will be subject to a penalty tax as set out in the Tax Act. Generally, a controlling individual will not be considered to have a "significant interest" in a Fund unless the controlling individual owns 10% or more of the value of the outstanding Units of such Fund, either alone or together with persons and partnerships with which the controlling individual does not deal at arm's length (within the meaning of the Tax Act). [Under a safe harbour rule for new mutual funds, units of a Fund will not be a prohibited investment for a TFSA, RRSP, RESP, RDSP, or RRIF at any time during the first 24 months of the Fund's existence, provided the Fund is, or is deemed to be, a mutual fund trust under the ITA during that time and is in substantial compliance with National Instrument 81-10 - *Investment Funds* or follows a reasonable policy of investment diversification.

Amounts withdrawn from a Registered Plan (other than from a TFSA, contributions withdrawn from a RESP, certain withdrawals from a RDSP and, pursuant to the FHSA Amendments, certain withdrawals from a FHSA to finance a first home) will generally be subject to tax.

CERTAIN RISK FACTORS

The Optimize Private Client Program involves significant risks. Clients should carefully consider, among other factors, the matters described below, each of which could have an adverse effect on the value of their Account. As a result of these factors, as well as other risks inherent in any investment, there can be no assurance that an Account will meet the investment objectives specified in a client's Investment Policy, or that a Fund will meet its investment objectives described herein or otherwise be able to successfully carry out its investment strategy. There is no assurance that the Funds will make any distributions or earn any positive return, in the short-term or the long-term. Prospective clients should carefully consider the following risk factors before participating in the Optimize Private Client Program.

Introduction

A Fund is a pool of investments made on behalf of people with a similar investment objective. When a client invests in a Fund, the client's money is working together with that of many other investors. The portfolio manager invests this money on behalf of the whole group. Investors share a Fund's income, expenses, gains and losses in proportion to their interest in the Fund. Funds can give individuals the advantages of a simpler, more accessible, less expensive and less time-consuming method of investing in a portfolio of securities. Funds own different kinds of investments, depending on their objectives. These include equities like stocks, fixed-income securities like bonds and cash or cash equivalents like treasury bills. Unlike traditional funds, certain Funds may also invest in Units of other Funds, called the Underlying Funds. The value of these investments will change from day to day, reflecting changes in interest rates, economic conditions, financial markets and company news. As a result, when a client redeems Units, they may be worth more or less than when the client bought them. When a client invests in a Fund trust, the client is buying a portion of that Fund called a Unit. Funds keep track of all the individual investments by recording how many Units each investor owns. The more money a client puts into the Fund, the more Units the client receives. The price of a Unit changes every day, depending on how the investments are performing. When the investments rise in value, the price of a Unit goes up. When the investments drop in value, the price of the Unit goes down. Some Funds offer Units in more than one class and/or series. A multi-class and/or -series structure recognizes that different investors may seek the same investment objective, yet require different investment advice and/or service. Each series represents an investment in the same investment portfolio of each Fund. However, each series may charge a different management fee and incur its own specific expenses. As a result, a separate Net Asset Value per Unit is calculated for each class or series. A client's investment in any Fund is not guaranteed. Unlike bank accounts or

guaranteed investment certificates (**GICs**), Fund Units are not covered by the Canada Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other government deposit insurer. Under exceptional circumstances, a client may not be able to redeem their Units. See "REDEMPTIONS OF UNITS – Suspension of Redemption".

The Funds are mutual funds, however, they are not distributed under a prospectus and therefore they are not subject to the investment restrictions that apply to public mutual funds under NI 81-102, including diversification requirements and restrictions from investing in illiquid securities. Although Optimize generally manages the Funds to be broadly diversified, in certain market circumstances and when Optimize considers it to be in the best interests of a Fund to do so, the investment portfolio of a Fund may not comply with the diversification requirements applicable to public mutual funds. In addition, while the Optimize Core Funds invest solely in public market securities, the Optimize Private Opportunities Funds and the Optimize Portfolio Funds may invest, directly or indirectly, in securities of private issuers which would not be permissible investments for public mutual funds. Specific risks associated with the investment strategies of the OPO Funds are set out below under "CERTAIN RISK FACTORS – Risk Factors Applicable to Investments in the Optimize Private Opportunities Funds".

Risk and Return

As an investor, there is always a risk of losing money. Funds are no exception, but the degree of risk varies considerably from one Fund to the next. As a general rule, investments with the greatest risk have the greatest potential for gains, but also have the greatest potential for losses. The key is for the client to recognize the risk involved with their investment, understand it, and decide whether it is a risk the client is comfortable accepting.

Although the value of a client's investments may drop in the short term, a longer investment horizon will help to lessen the effects of short-term market volatility. A shorter investment horizon may result in a client having to sell investments in adverse conditions. Ideally, investors in equity Funds should have a minimum five- to nine-year investment horizon, which generally provides enough time for the investments to overcome any short-term volatility and grow.

The following chart shows the relationship between risk and potential return. As demonstrated by the chart, money market funds are the least volatile and generally have the lowest returns. At the other end of the scale, equity funds are usually the most risky, but also tend to have the highest potential return.



At any given time, however, one Fund may outperform another. The key is to have a diversified portfolio of Funds to try to ensure that a decline in one Fund is offset by growth in another, helping to reduce risk and smooth out returns. The Optimize Model Portfolios and each individual Optimize Fund seeks to achieve this diversification objective.

Risk Factors Applicable to Investments in the Funds

Capital Erosion Risk

If markets fell substantially and did not recover for a significant period, a Fund's Net Asset Value would likely drop in line with the market decline.

Commodity Risk

Certain Funds may obtain exposure to commodities or commodity sectors, including exposure to gold, silver and platinum, by investing, directly or indirectly, in commodities. Funds exposed to commodities will be affected by changes in the prices of the commodities, which can fluctuate significantly in short time periods causing volatility in a Fund's Net Asset Value. Commodity prices can change as a result of a number of factors, including supply and demand, speculation, central bank and international monetary activities, political or economic instability, changes in interest rates and currency values or changes in government regulations affecting commodities.

Concentration Risk

There are risks associated with any Fund that concentrates its investments in a particular issuer or issuers. Concentrating investments allows a Fund to focus on a particular issuer's potential, but it also means that the value of the Fund tends to be more volatile than the value of a more diversified Fund because the concentrated Fund's value is affected more by the performance of that particular issuer.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the possibility that a borrower, or the counterparty to a derivatives contract, is unable or unwilling to repay the loan or obligation, either on time or at all. Companies, governments and special purpose vehicles (such as vehicles that issue asset-backed securities or mortgage-backed securities) that borrow money, and the debt securities they issue, are rated by specialized rating agencies. Debt securities issued by companies or governments in emerging markets often have higher credit risk (lower rated debt), while debt securities issued by well-established companies or by governments of developed countries tend to have lower credit risk (higher rated debt). A downgrade in an issuer's credit rating or other adverse news regarding an issuer can influence a debt security's market value. Other factors can also influence a debt security's market value, such as the level of liquidity of the security, a change in the market perception of the creditworthiness of the security, the parties involved in structuring the security and the underlying assets, if any. Lower rated and unrated debt instruments generally offer a better return than higher grade debt instruments but have the potential for substantial loss. Funds that invest in companies or markets with higher credit risk tend to be more volatile in the short term. However, they may offer the potential of higher returns over the long term.

Currency Risk

Most Funds are valued in Canadian dollars. However, the Funds that purchase foreign securities may be required to pay for such securities using a foreign currency and receive a foreign currency when they sell them. Such Funds may also purchase foreign currencies as investments. As a result, changes in the value of the Canadian dollar compared to foreign currencies will affect the value, in Canadian dollars, of any foreign securities or foreign currencies in a Fund. For example, if the Canadian dollar rises relative to the U.S. dollar, a Fund's U.S. holdings will be worth fewer Canadian dollars. This decline in value may reduce, or even eliminate, any return the Fund has earned. Currency exposure may increase the volatility

of foreign investments relative to Canadian investments. Some Funds may hedge (protect against) the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates of the underlying assets of the Fund.

Funds denominated in U.S. dollars

The Canada Revenue Agency requires that capital gains and losses be reported in Canadian dollars. As a result, when redeeming Units in a U.S. dollar denominated Fund, clients need to calculate gains or losses based on the Canadian dollar value of their Units when they were purchased and when they were sold. Additionally, although U.S. dollar denominated Funds distribute any income in U.S. dollars, it must be reported in Canadian dollars for Canadian tax purposes. Consequently, all investment income will be reported to clients in Canadian dollars for income tax purposes. In each of the cases above, changes in the value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar may affect a client's income tax payable. Clients should consult a tax advisor.

Derivatives Risk

A derivative is a type of investment whose value is derived from the performance of other investments or from the movement of interest rates, exchange rates or market indices. The Funds may use derivatives as described under "INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND RESTRICTIONS OF THE OPTIMIZE FUNDS - Use of Derivative Instruments"

There are many different types of derivatives, which usually take the form of a contract to buy or sell a specific commodity, currency, stock or market index. The most common types of derivatives are:

- 1. a futures or forward contract, which are agreements made today to buy or sell a particular currency, security or market index on a specific day in the future at a specified price;
- 2. an option contract, which is an agreement that gives the buyer the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell certain securities within a certain time period, at a specified price; and
- 3. a swap agreement, which is a negotiated contract between parties agreeing to exchange payments based on returns of different investments. The most common type is an interest rate swap. Party A agrees to pay Party B a fixed amount based on a pre-set interest rate. In return, Party B agrees to pay Party A a floating amount based on a reference rate such as bankers acceptances, the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") or the Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR"), as applicable.

Derivatives can help a Fund achieve its investment objectives and may be used in three different ways:

- 1. to protect against or limit the changes in the value of an investment that may result from changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and stock prices;
- 2. as a substitute to investing directly in a particular security or market. A Fund may use derivatives instead of buying the actual security because it may be cheaper or more efficient; or
- 3. as a substitute for investing directly in a foreign currency as part of the overall investment strategy of a Fund which invests in foreign securities. A portfolio manager may take the view that a currency will underperform or outperform another currency over a period of time and use currency forwards to take on currency exposure on a short- or long-term basis.

Derivatives have their own special risks. Here are some of the common ones:

- 1. Using derivatives for hedging may not always work and it could limit a Fund's potential to make a gain;
- 2. Using derivatives for non-hedging does not protect a Fund from a decline in the value of the underlying security, currency or market for which the derivative is a substitute.
- 3. The price of a derivative may not accurately reflect the value of the underlying currency or security.
- 4. There is no guarantee that a Fund can close out a derivative contract when it wants to. If, for example, a stock exchange imposes trading limits, it could affect the ability of a Fund to close out its position in derivatives. This type of event could prevent a Fund from making a profit or limiting its losses.
- 5. Derivatives traded on foreign markets may be harder to trade and may have higher credit risks than derivatives traded in North America.
- 6. The other party to a derivative contract may not be able to meet its obligation to complete the transaction

Foreign Investment Risk

The Funds may invest in companies that operate or are listed on stock exchanges in countries other than Canada. Investments in these companies may be affected by global economic and political factors, as well as the economic and political factors of the particular country or geographic region in which the issuer operates. Many countries have less stringent accounting, auditing and reporting standards than we do in Canada. Some foreign stock markets have less trading volume, which may make it more difficult to sell an investment or make prices more volatile. Certain countries may also have foreign investment or exchange laws that make it difficult to sell an investment or may impose withholding or other taxes that could reduce the return on the investment. Different financial, political and social factors could hurt the value of foreign investments, and companies operating in foreign markets may have limited product lines, markets or resources available to them. As a result, Funds that specialize by investing in securities of companies that are listed on stock exchanges in countries other than Canada, or in companies that operate in countries other than Canada, may experience larger and more frequent price changes in the short term. The risks of foreign investments are generally higher in emerging markets

Interest Rate Risk

If a Fund invests primarily in bonds and other fixed-income securities, the biggest influence on the Fund's value will be changes in the general level of interest rates. If interest rates fall, the value of the Fund's Units will tend to rise. If interest rates rise, the value of the Fund's Units will tend to fall. Depending on a Fund's holdings, short-term interest rates can have a different influence on a Fund's value than long-term interest rates. If a Fund invests primarily in bonds and other fixed-income securities with longer-term maturities, the biggest influence on the Fund's value will be changes in the general level of long-term maturities, the biggest influence on the Fund's value will be changes in the general level of shorter-term maturities, the biggest influence on the Fund's value will be changes in the general level of shorter-term interest rates. If you are seeking current income, you should be aware that the level of interest income from a money market fund will fluctuate as short-term interest rates vary.

Issuer-specific Risk

The market value of an individual issuer's securities can be more volatile than the market as a whole. As a result, if a single issuer's securities represent a significant portion of the market value of a Fund's assets, changes in the market value of that issuer's securities may cause greater fluctuations in the Fund's Unit value than would normally be the case. A less-diversified Fund may also suffer from reduced liquidity if a significant portion of its assets is invested in any one issuer. In particular, the Fund may not be able to easily liquidate its position in the issuer as required to Fund redemption requests.

Lack of Operating History Risk

The Optimize Global Equity Fund, Optimize Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund, Optimize Diversified Income Fund, Optimize Money Market Fund, and all of the Optimize Portfolio Funds are newly organized funds with no previous operating history. The Optimize Private Opportunities Funds and Optimize Core Equity Fund were launched in December 2021 and therefore have limited operating histories. Although Optimize has been operating as a portfolio manager since 2009 and has significant experience investing in securities and third party investment products on a discretionary basis for client accounts, its experience as an investment fund manager is limited to management of the OPO Funds and Optimize Core Equity Fund since December 2021.

Large Investor Risk

The securities of a Fund, including an Underlying Fund, may be held in significant percentages by an investor, including another Fund. In order to meet purchase and redemption requests by the investor, the Fund may have to alter its holdings significantly and purchase or sell investments at unfavourable prices. This can reduce the returns of the Fund. If a Fund experiences a "loss restriction event" (i) the Fund will be deemed to have a taxation year-end for tax purposes (which would result in an allocation of the Fund's taxable income at such time to Unitholders so that the Fund is not liable for income tax on such amounts). and (ii) the Fund will become subject to the loss restriction rules generally applicable to corporations that experience an acquisition of control, including a deemed realization of any unrealized capital losses and restrictions on their ability to carry forward losses. Generally, a Fund will be subject to a loss restriction event when a person becomes a "majority-interest beneficiary" of the Fund, or a group of persons becomes a "majority-interest group of beneficiaries" of the Fund, as those terms are defined in the Tax Act. Generally, a majority-interest beneficiary of a Fund will be a beneficiary who, together with the beneficial interests of persons and partnerships with whom the beneficiary is affiliated, owns interests in the Fund with a fair market value that is greater than 50% of the fair market value of all the interests in the Fund. The Tax Act will generally provide relief from the potential application of the loss restriction event rules to a Fund that is an "investment fund" as defined therein.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of being invested in the equity and fixed-income markets. The market value of a Fund's investments will rise and fall based on specific company developments and broader equity or fixed-income market conditions including but not limited to war and occupation, terrorism, geopolitics, health crises, natural disasters, climate change and civil unrest. Market value will also vary with changes in the general economic and financial conditions in countries where the investments are based (whether as a result of political, social or environmental changes or otherwise).

Small-cap Risk

Securities of small-cap companies tend to be traded less frequently and in smaller volumes than those of large-cap companies. As a result, the prices of shares of small-cap companies tend to be less stable than those of large-cap companies. Their value may rise and fall more sharply than other securities, and they may be more difficult to buy and sell.

Specialization Risk

Some Funds specialize by using a specific investment style or approach, like growth or value. Specialization allows a Fund to focus on a specific investment approach, which can boost returns if the particular investment style is in favour. However, if the particular investment style is out of favour, the value of the Fund may underperform relative to less specialized investments. Funds that specialize tend to be less diversified, but may add diversification benefits to portfolios that do not otherwise have exposure to this specialization.

Trust Investments Risk

A Fund that invests in trusts faces the risk that, as a holder of units of a trust, the Fund may be held liable and subject to levy or execution for satisfaction of all obligations and claims of the trust. This risk may arise with income trusts, which include real estate investment trusts and other forms of business trusts. The risk is considered remote.

Alberta, Ontario, Saskatchewan, British Columbia and Manitoba have legislation to eliminate this risk in respect of holders of units of trusts that are reporting issuers organized under the laws of such provinces. However, the OPO Funds and the Portfolio Funds will invest in trusts that are not reporting issuers under such laws.

Not a Public Mutual Fund

As discussed above under "CERTAIN RISK FACTORS – Introduction", although each Fund is a "mutual fund" under applicable securities law, the Funds are not offering securities by prospectus and have not adopted the investment restrictions contained in National Instrument 81-102 – *Investment Funds*.

Equity Risk

To the extent that a Fund holds equity portfolio investments, it will be influenced by stock market conditions in those jurisdictions where the securities held by such Fund are listed for trading and by changes in the circumstances of the issuers whose securities are held by such Fund.

Lack of Liquidity

Liquidity refers to the speed and ease with which an asset can be sold and converted into cash. There is currently no market through which the Units may be sold and one is not expected to develop. Distributions of Units of the Funds are not qualified by way of prospectus and consequently the resale of Units is subject to restrictions under applicable securities laws. It is possible that Unitholders may not be able to resell their Units other than by way of redemption, which is subject to the limitations described under "REDEMPTIONS OF UNITS".

For a discussion of additional risks associated with illiquidity of Underlying Investments held by the OPO Funds, see "Risk Factors Applicable to Investments in the Optimize Private Opportunities Funds – Illiquidity of Investments".

Reliance on Optimize as Portfolio Manager

The Funds are managed exclusively by Optimize, with all investment decisions being made by Optimize. Unitholders in a Fund will not have the right to participate in the management of the Fund or in decisions made by Optimize of the Fund on its behalf. As a result, Unitholders will have almost no control over their investments in a Fund or their prospects with respect thereto. Each Fund's ability to achieve its investment objective will depend on the ability of Optimize to effectively implement each Fund's investment strategy. The success of the Funds depends in substantial part upon the skill and expertise of Optimize's officers and employees and the other individuals employed to assist them. There can be no assurance that the officers and employees will continue to be members of or employed by Optimize. The loss of service to the Funds of one or more officers, employees, or members of Optimize could have a material adverse effect on the success of the Funds.

Allocation of Personnel

Optimize's officers and employees will not be able to devote all of their business time and attention to the Funds as they will continue to be involved in Optimize's other business activities. Optimize's officers and employees will devote such time and attention to the business of the Funds as they reasonably consider necessary to carry out the operations of the Funds effectively.

Exchange Rate Fluctuations

The functional currency of the Funds will be Canadian dollars. A substantial portion of each Fund's assets may be invested in non-Canadian investments and the income received by the Funds will be denominated in the local currency of investment, whereas a Unitholder's investment in and distributions from a Fund will be made in either Canadian or U.S. dollars, at the option of the Unitholder. Therefore, the amount of the distributions made by a Fund, as well as the dollar-denominated value of a Fund's portfolio investments and the Fund Net Asset Value, may be adversely affected by changes in the value of such local currency relative to the Canadian or U.S. dollar. The value of Units or the value of the investments made by a Fund may also fluctuate as a result of the impact of economic and political changes on currency exchange rates.

Optimize may, but is not required to, hedge foreign currency exposure associated with the Underlying Investments of the Fund. Optimize does not currently intend to hedge such foreign currency exposure.

Use of Leverage

Optimize has the discretion to use debt to fund obligations and enhance returns of the Funds up to the Maximum Permitted Borrowing. The use of financial leverage adds financial risk to any investment. Underlying Funds may invest in highly leveraged companies which involves a high degree of risk. Some of the Underlying Funds' investments in portfolio companies may involve leverage, which is compounded by the fact that a Fund may use debt to fund its investment in such an Underlying Fund, up to the Maximum Permitted Borrowing Amount. Use of leverage by the Funds and the Underlying Funds will increase the exposure of the Funds and the portfolio companies of the Underlying Funds to adverse economic factors such as downturns in the economy or deteriorations in the condition of the portfolio company or its industry. In the event that a Fund or any portfolio company of an Underlying Fund cannot

generate adequate cash flow to meet debt service, the Fund or the Underlying Fund may suffer a partial or total loss of capital that, depending upon the size of the leveraged investment by the Fund or the Underlying Fund, could adversely affect the return of capital to the applicable Fund. In addition, each Fund may use leverage in making Underlying Investments which could expose the Funds to direct exposure to the risks associated with leveraged investing. Using leverage to finance the purchase of securities or make other investments, involves greater risk than purchasing investments using cash resources only as it can significantly magnify the gain or loss on the cash invested.

Distributions in Kind

Although, under normal circumstances, each Fund intends to make distributions in Units, it is possible that under certain circumstances (including the liquidation of a Fund) distributions may be made in kind and could consist of securities for which there is no readily available public market. Such securities may not be qualified investments for Registered Plans.

Recourse to the Funds' Assets

Each Fund's assets, including any investments made by the Fund and any capital held by the Fund, are available to satisfy all liabilities and other obligations of the Fund. If a Fund itself becomes subject to a liability, parties seeking to have the liability satisfied may have recourse to the Fund's assets generally and not be limited to any particular asset, such as the investment giving rise to the liability.

Unitholder Liability

The Declaration of Trust provides that no Unitholder shall be subject to any liability whatsoever, in contract or otherwise, to any person in connection with the assets of a Fund or the obligations or the affairs of the Fund and all such persons shall look solely to the assets of the applicable Fund for satisfaction of claims of any nature arising out of or in connection therewith and the assets of the applicable Fund only shall be subject to levy or execution. Notwithstanding the foregoing statement in the Declaration of Trust relating to unsettled claims on a Fund's assets, there is a risk, that Optimize considers minimal in the circumstances, that a Unitholder could be held personally liable for obligations of a Fund. It is intended that the Funds' operations be conducted in such a way as to minimize any such risk. In the event that a Unitholder should be required to satisfy any obligation of a Fund, such Unitholder will be entitled to reimbursement from any available assets of the applicable Fund.

To the extent that the Funds are subject to such claims and such claims are not satisfied by the Fund, there is a risk that a Unitholder of the Fund could be held personally liable for the obligations of the trust. The possibility of a Unitholder incurring personal liability of this nature is considered extremely remote.

Indemnification

Optimize and its respective officers, directors, agents, shareholders, partners and employees and affiliates will be entitled to indemnification from each Fund, except in certain circumstances as set out in the Declaration of Trust. The assets of the applicable Fund will be available to satisfy those indemnification obligations, and Unitholders may be required to return distributions to satisfy such obligations. Such obligations will survive the dissolution of the applicable Fund.

Environmental Liabilities

The Funds and Underlying Funds could face substantial risk of loss from environmental claims arising from investments made with undisclosed or unknown environmental problems or inadequate reserves or

insurance for previously identified matters, as well as from occupational safety issues and concerns. Under certain circumstances, U.S. courts have held that a parent company is responsible for the environmental clean-up obligations of its subsidiary imposed by applicable laws. In the event that a Fund or an Underlying Fund is the parent of a portfolio company with such obligations, a U.S. court or a court of any other applicable jurisdiction might find that the Fund or an Underlying Fund is liable for such obligations. Environmental claims with respect to a specific investment may exceed the value of such investment.

Effects of Bankruptcy

The Funds and Underlying Funds may make investments in portfolio companies that are or may become the subject of voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy or similar proceedings under applicable laws. Certain risks that are faced in bankruptcy or similar proceedings that must be factored into the investment decision include, for example, the potential total loss of any such investment. Upon confirmation of a plan of reorganization under applicable bankruptcy laws, or as a result of a liquidation proceeding, the Funds or Underlying Funds could suffer a loss of all or a part of the value of its investment in a portfolio company. A bankruptcy filing or similar proceeding may adversely and permanently affect a portfolio company. The portfolio company could lose market position and key employees, and the liquidation value of the portfolio company may not equal the liquidation value that was believed to exist prior to the making of the investment by a Fund or an Underlying Fund.

Investments in Public Companies

The Funds or Underlying Funds may invest in public companies or take private portfolio companies public. Investments in public companies may subject the Funds or Underlying Funds to risks that differ in type or degree from those involved with investments in privately held companies. Such risks include, without limitation, greater volatility in the valuation of such companies, increased obligations to disclose information regarding such companies, limitations on the ability of the Funds or Underlying Funds to dispose of such securities at certain times (including due to the possession by the Funds or Underlying Funds or Onderlying Funds of material non-public information), increased likelihood of shareholder litigation against such companies' board members, regulatory action by the domestic or foreign securities regulators and increased costs associated with each of the aforementioned risks.

Management Fee; Fees for Services

Each Fund will pay Management Fees to Optimize and will bear all expenses related to its operations. In addition, the OPO Funds will pay performance fees to Optimize, as described under "FEES AND EXPENSES – Performance Fees Paid by Optimize Private Opportunities Funds". Such fees and expenses will reduce actual returns to Unitholders. Most of the fees and expenses (other than performance fees) will be paid regardless of whether the applicable Fund produces positive investment returns. If the Fund does not produce significant positive investment returns, these fees and expenses could reduce the amount of the investment recovered by a Unitholder to an amount less than the amount invested in the Fund by such Unitholder.

Limited Remedies against Optimize

The Declaration of Trust includes provisions for exculpation and indemnification of Optimize and its respective officers, directors, agents, shareholders, partners and employees and affiliates. Therefore, investors may have more limited rights of action than they would have absent such limitation.

Cash Management Policy

Under the Funds' cash management policy, the Funds' invest in certain Underlying Investments which are expected to generate returns that are substantially lower than the returns the Funds anticipate receiving from more illiquid Underlying Investments. There may also be a high degree of variability between the returns generated by different types of Underlying Investments.

Taxation of Funds and Unitholders

There can be no assurance that Canadian federal income tax laws will not be changed in a manner that adversely affects the Funds or the Unitholders.

Fluctuation in NAV

The Class NAV per Unit will vary based on, among other things, the value of a Fund's Underlying Investments, including the value of the securities of the Underlying Funds, the performance of the capital markets and commodities markets generally, foreign exchange rates and interest rates. Fluctuations in the values of a Fund's investments may occur for a number of reasons beyond the control of Optimize.

Potential Conflicts of Interest

Optimize and its directors and officers and their respective affiliates and associates may engage in the promotion, management or investment management of, or may render advice to any other account or fund that has investment objectives and strategies similar to the Funds. Optimize may have a conflict of interest in rendering advice to the Funds because the benefit Optimize and its personnel may receive from managing some other accounts may exceed the benefit from managing the Funds' accounts, and, therefore, may provide an incentive to favour such other accounts. Optimize intends that any other such investment mandates will be carried out in a manner that either enhances or is neutral to the investment performance of the Funds. See "CONFLICTS OF INTEREST".

Although none of the directors or officers of Optimize will devote his or her full time to the activities and affairs of the Funds, each will devote as much time as is necessary to the management of the activities and affairs of the Fund. Although officers, directors and professional staff of Optimize will devote as much time to the Funds as Optimize deems appropriate to perform their respective duties in accordance with the Declaration of Trust, Optimize's investment personnel may have conflicts in allocating its time and services among each Fund's investment portfolio and the other investment portfolios managed by Optimize.

Cyber Security Risk

As the use of technology has become more prevalent in the course of business, Optimize and the Funds have become potentially more susceptible to operational risks through breaches of cyber security. A breach of cyber security refers to both intentional and unintentional events that may cause Optimize or a Fund to lose proprietary information, suffer data corruption or lose operational capacity. This in turn could cause Optimize or the Fund to incur regulatory penalties, reputational damage, additional compliance costs associated with corrective measures, and/or financial loss. Cyber security breaches may involve unauthorized access to Optimize's or a Fund's digital information systems (e.g. through "hacking" or malicious software coding) but may also result from outside attacks, such as denial of service attacks (i.e. efforts to make network services unavailable to intended users). In addition, cyber security breaches of Optimize's or a Fund's third party service providers (e.g. administrators and custodians)

or companies that a Fund invests in can also subject Optimize and a Fund to many of the same risks associated with direct cyber security breaches.

Counterparty Risk

When the Funds invest in derivative instruments, they are generally required to post Fund assets with the futures commission merchant or other counterparty as security for the Funds' obligations under such derivative instruments. The Funds may provide such counterparties with a fixed charge or other security over assets posted as security for the Funds' obligations under such derivative instruments and/or transfer all rights, title and interest in and to assets which are held as security for the Fund's obligations to the counterparty. Collateral would be expected to pass from a Fund to a counterparty free and clear of any liens, claims, charges or encumbrances or any other interest of the Fund and accordingly the counterparty would expect that it would be able to deal with, lend, dispose of, pledge or otherwise use all collateral for its own purposes and would be obliged to redeliver equivalent collateral to the Fund on satisfaction by the Fund of all its obligations to the counterparty and its affiliates. In such cases a Fund will rank as an unsecured creditor in relation thereto and, in the event of the insolvency of the counterparty, a Fund may not be able to recover such equivalent assets in full.

Although the counterparty is expected to show on its own records that the Fund is the beneficial owner of assets held by it as margin or security for the Fund's obligations, collateral posted with a counterparty may be comingled with the counterparty's assets and subject to greater risk of loss in the event (i) the counterparty becomes bankrupt; (ii) there is a breakdown in the counterparty's information technology systems; or (iii) due to the fraud, willful or reckless misconduct, negligence or error of the counterparty or its personnel. In the event of an irreconcilable shortfall following the default of a counterparty, a Fund may be expected to share in that shortfall proportionately with the counterparty's other customers.

Subscription and Redemption Price based on Unaudited Data

The calculation of the subscription price and redemption price for Units, and payment of redemption proceeds, may be made on the basis of the unaudited Fund Net Asset Value and adjustments and revisions may be made to the NAV of the Fund following the year-end audit of the Fund. However, once paid, no revision to a Unitholder's subscription price or redemption price for Units will be made based upon audit adjustments. Thus, the Fund will not seek reimbursement from a Unitholder who purchased Units on the basis of a NAV that was revised upward following the year-end audit, or from a Unitholder who received redemption proceeds on the basis of a NAV that was revised downward following the year-end audit. As a result, Unitholders may be positively or negatively affected by a revision to the Fund NAV. Furthermore, to the extent that such revisions to NAV decrease the Fund NAV, the outstanding Units will be adversely affected by redemptions. Conversely, any increases in the Fund resulting from such adjustments will be entirely for the benefit of the outstanding Units.

The OPO Funds will invest in Underlying Funds and will generally value interests in Underlying Funds as such valuations are reported to the Fund. Such valuations of the interests in the relevant Underlying Funds will be utilized by the OPO Funds in calculating NAV. The NAV will therefore be indirectly affected by the value of assets held by the Fund and the applicable Underlying Funds. The net asset values received by the OPO Funds from Underlying Funds may be estimates only, and such values will be used to calculate NAVs and fee accruals for purposes of determining amounts payable on subscription or redemptions. No adjustments or revisions to an OPO Fund's NAV will be made in the event that an Underlying Fund's net asset value is subject to later adjustment based on valuation information available at that time, including for example as a result of year-end audit.

Risk Factors Applicable to Investments in the Optimize Private Opportunities Funds

Introduction

As discussed above under "CERTAIN RISK FACTORS – Introduction", the OPO Funds invest, directly and indirectly through investments in Underlying Funds, in securities issued by private companies and other issuers that would not be permitted investments for public mutual funds under NI 81-102.

The OPO Funds are included in almost all of the Model Portfolios available under the Optimize Private Client Program, so prospective clients should carefully consider these risk factors prior to making a decision to participate in the Optimize Private Client Program.

Competitive Market for Investment Opportunities

The Funds and the Underlying Funds compete with a large number of other credit funds, private equity funds, mezzanine funds, investment banks and other equity and non-equity based funds, and other sources of financing, including traditional financial services companies such as commercial banks. Competitors may have a lower cost of funds and may have access to funding sources that are not available to the Underlying Funds. In addition, certain competitors of the Underlying Funds may have higher risk tolerances or different risk assessments, which could allow them to consider a wider variety of investments and establish more relationships and build their market shares. There is no assurance that the competitive pressures faced by the Underlying Funds will not have a material adverse effect on their activities, financial condition and results of operations. Also, as a result of this competition, the Underlying Funds may not be able to take advantage of attractive investment opportunities from time to time and there can be no assurance that they will be able to identify and make investments. In addition to third parties, the Underlying Funds may compete against each other for investment opportunities.

Management Fund Capital

Optimize may employ the commonly used private equity investment strategy of over-committing a Fund's capital to Underlying Investments in an effort to ensure that each Fund's capital is fully or substantially invested in Underlying Investments on a continuous basis. This over-commitment strategy is utilized because Underlying Funds generally will not draw down all of the capital commitments made by a Fund before the Underlying Funds start returning capital to a Fund. If Optimize is unable to maintain full or substantial investment of a Fund's capital in Underlying Investments, the investment returns realized by a Fund may be lower than they would be otherwise. However, use of the over-commitment strategy could also result in a Fund having to borrow to meet its capital commitments in certain circumstances or defaulting on its capital commitment obligations, either of which could have an adverse effect on a Fund's performance.

Limited Information Regarding the Portfolio Companies

An Underlying Fund's portfolio may consist primarily of securities issued by privately held portfolio companies. There is generally little or no publicly available information about such companies, and the Underlying Funds must rely on the diligence of their own employees and the consultants they hire to obtain the information necessary for their decision to invest in them. There can be no assurance that the diligence efforts of the Underlying Funds will uncover all material information about the privately held business necessary for the Underlying Funds to make a fully informed investment decision.

Availability of Investments

There is no guarantee that suitable investment opportunities for the Funds' capital will be found, that investments on favourable terms can be negotiated or that the Funds will be able to realize on the value of their Underlying Investments or the value of the investments made by the Underlying Funds. Among other factors, competition for suitable portfolio investments from companies, the public equity markets and other investors may reduce the availability of investment opportunities. Specifically, there has been significant recent growth in the number of firms organized to make private credit and private equity investments throughout the world, which may result in increased competition in obtaining suitable investments for the Funds.

Accounting and Disclosure Standards; Limited Information

The Underlying Funds may have or make investments in any part of the world, including in countries where accounting, auditing, financial and other reporting standards, practices and disclosure requirements are not equivalent to those in Canada, the United States and Europe and may differ in fundamental ways. Accordingly, information available to the Underlying Funds and, consequently, to the Funds, including both general economic and commercial information and information concerning specific enterprises or assets, may be less reliable and less detailed than information available in more economically sophisticated countries.

Changes in Laws or Regulations

Additional laws may apply to the Underlying Funds and the portfolio companies that they hold. Compliance with, and monitoring of, applicable laws and regulations may be difficult, time consuming and costly. Those laws and regulations and their interpretation and application may also change from time to time and those changes could have a material adverse effect on an Underlying Fund's business, investments and results of operations. In addition, a failure to comply with applicable laws or regulations, as interpreted and applied, could have a material adverse effect on the business, investments and results of operations of the Underlying Funds. The Funds must comply with various legal requirements, including requirements imposed by Canadian, U.S. and foreign anti-money laundering laws, securities laws, commodities laws, tax laws and pension laws. Should any of those laws change over the term of a Fund, the legal requirements to which the Fund and the Unitholders may be subject could differ materially from current requirements. Furthermore, the Canadian and U.S. securities laws applicable to the Units, the Funds and Optimize are constantly under review by persons involved in the legislative process resulting in revisions of regulations and revised interpretations of established concepts as well as statutory changes. These laws may be modified by legislative, judicial or administrative action at any time. These revisions to the Canadian and U.S. securities laws and interpretations thereof and potential future revisions and interpretations could adversely affect the Units, the Funds or Optimize and, in that regard, could require modifications to each Fund's intended investment program or increase compliance costs of operating a Fund.

The legal, tax and regulatory changes in Canada or in other countries where the Funds have direct or indirect investments could have an adverse effect on the Funds, their distributions or Unitholders. The legal, tax and regulatory considerations in Canada, and the legal, tax and regulatory considerations in other jurisdictions affecting the ability of the Funds to achieve their investment objectives are complex and subject to change, which may affect the performance of the Funds. In addition, other legal, tax and regulatory changes could occur during the term of a Fund that may adversely affect the Fund or the Unitholders. For example, from time to time, the market for private fund transactions has been adversely affected by a decrease in the availability of senior and subordinated financing for transactions, in part in

response to regulatory pressures on providers of financing to reduce or eliminate their exposure to such transactions. In addition, private funds and their investment advisers may be subject to increased regulation, taxation or other scrutiny by regulators or other market participants. There can be no assurance as to whether any such scrutiny or initiatives will have an adverse impact on the private fund industry generally or on the Funds or Optimize, including the ability of the Funds to take the measures necessary to effect operating improvements or restructurings of portfolio companies or otherwise achieve its objectives. Investors should seek independent legal and tax advice regarding the legal and tax implications of investing in a Fund.

Reliance upon Borrowed Funds

Because investments in private issuers often rely on the use of leverage, the ability to achieve attractive rates of return on such private investments will depend on the Funds' and the Underlying Funds' continued ability to access sources of debt financing at attractive rates. An increase in either the general levels of interest rates or in the risk spread demanded by lenders would make it more expensive to finance private credit and private equity investments. Increases in interest rates could also make it more difficult to locate and consummate private credit and private equity investments because other potential buyers, including operating companies acting as strategic buyers, may be able to bid for an asset at a higher price due to a lower overall cost of capital. Availability of capital from debt capital markets is subject to significant volatility and the Funds and Underlying Funds may not be able to access those markets at attractive rates, or at all, when completing a private credit or private equity investment. Any of the foregoing circumstances could have a material adverse effect on the financial condition and results of operations of the Funds and the Underlying Funds.

Investments in Less Established Companies

The Underlying Investments will include Underlying Funds that may invest in the securities of less established companies and may also include direct investments in such companies. Investments in such companies may involve greater risks than are generally associated with investments in more established companies.

Investment in Restructurings of Distressed Companies

The Funds and the Underlying Funds may make investments in restructurings of distressed or nonperforming companies or assets which involve a high degree of financial risk and are experiencing or are expected to experience severe financial difficulties, which may never be overcome.

Dependence on Key Management Personnel

The Funds' investment strategies involve investing in Underlying Funds managed by other fund managers. As such, the performance of the Funds' investments will depend upon the ability of the Underlying Fund managers to source, select, complete and realize appropriate investments. In the case of each Fund's investment portfolio, reliance will be placed on fund managers managing credits funds, private equity funds and funds of funds in which the Funds invest. The performance of these investments will in turn depend upon the managers of the underlying credit and private equity funds and portfolio companies in which they invest.

Performance Fees

The existence of Performance Fees may create an incentive for Optimize to make riskier or more speculative investments on behalf of the Funds than would be the case in the absence of these arrangements.

Co-Investment Opportunities

Optimize or any of its affiliates may organize, make an investment in, or otherwise participate in, any vehicle formed to make co-investments with a Fund. Optimize or any of its affiliates may require such co-investors to bear a carried interest, management fee and other costs with respect to any co-investment.

Available Opportunities and Competitive Marketplace

The success of the Funds depends on the availability of appropriate investment opportunities and the ability of Optimize and Underlying Funds to identify, select, close and exit those investments. There can be no assurance that there will be a sufficient number of suitable investment opportunities to enable the Funds to invest all of their committed capital or that such investment opportunities will lead to completed investments by the Funds. The Funds and Underlying Funds will be competing with other private credit and private equity funds, as well as institutional investors and, potentially, strategic investors, for prospective investments. As a result of this competition, there can be no assurance that each Fund or each Underlying Fund will be able to locate suitable investment opportunities, acquire such investments for an appropriate level of consideration, achieve its targeted rate of return or fully invest its committed capital.

Bridge Financing

A Fund may provide bridge financing in connection with one or more of its investments. The Fund will bear the risk of any changes in capital markets that may adversely affect the ability of a portfolio company to refinance any bridge investments. If such portfolio company were unable to complete a refinancing, the Fund could have a long-term investment in a junior debt security or a junior debt security that is convertible into equity.

Fluctuation in NAV

A substantial portion of the investments made by a Fund, including investments that are made through the Underlying Funds, will be in the form of investments for which no published market exists. Optimize will be required to make good faith determinations as to the fair value of these investments on a regular basis in connection with the calculation of NAV and the preparation of a Fund's financial statements. In many cases, Optimize will be basing its determinations largely on fair value determinations made by the managers of the Underlying Funds. The process of valuing investments for which no published market exists is based on inherent uncertainties and the resulting values may differ from values that would have been used had a ready market existed for the investments and may differ from the prices at which the investments may be sold. As the price paid to redeeming Unitholders on a redemption is based on NAV per Unit, any uncertainty in the calculation of NAV may adversely affect such redeeming Unitholders or non-redeeming Unitholders.

Risks Upon Dispositions of Investments

In connection with the disposition of an investment, a Fund may be required to make representations about the business and financial affairs of such investment typical of those made in connection with the

sale of a business. It may also be required to indemnify the purchasers of such investments to the extent that such representations turn out to be inaccurate. These arrangements may result in contingent liabilities of the Fund, which might ultimately have to be funded by the Unitholders to the extent that such contingent liabilities exceed the reserves and other assets of the Fund and such Unitholders have received prior distributions from the Fund.

Risk Arising from Provision of Managerial Assistance

The Funds will sometimes designate officers, employees or representatives of Optimize to serve on the boards of directors of portfolio companies. The designation of directors and other measures contemplated could expose the assets of a Fund to claims by a portfolio company, its security holders and its creditors. While Optimize's officers and employees intend to manage the Funds in a way that will minimize exposure to these risks, the possibility of successful claims cannot be precluded. In general, the Funds will indemnify Optimize and Optimize's officers, employees or representatives from such claims.

Valuation of the Underlying Funds' Assets and Liabilities

If market prices for the assets of the Underlying Funds are not readily available or do not reflect current market values, such assets may be valued in accordance with pricing policies and procedures that have been reviewed and approved by the manager and/or board of directors of the applicable Underlying Fund. There is no guarantee that the value determined will represent the value that will be realized by the applicable Underlying Fund on the eventual disposition of the asset or that would be realized upon an immediate disposition of the asset.

Difficulty in Valuing Investment Portfolio

Optimize will value the investments of the Funds from time to time at their fair market values and in some cases will rely on the valuations of the general partners of its Underlying Funds. Assets that are publicly traded securities for which market prices are readily available will be valued based on their trading prices, however, for certain investments, there will likely be no public market for its securities. Thus, the valuation of investments inherently is highly subjective and imprecise and requires the use of techniques that are costly and time consuming and ultimately provide no more than an estimate of value. In establishing the value of a Fund's investments, Optimize may also consult with accounting firms, investment banks and other third parties when needed, to assist with the valuation of the Fund's investments. The value set by Optimize may not reflect the price at which the Fund could dispose of its interests in a particular investment at any given time.

Operating Company Board Participation

It is expected that members of Optimize will serve as directors of certain of the portfolio companies that the Funds invest in and, as such, may have duties to persons other than the Funds. Although such positions in certain circumstances may be important to a Fund's investment strategy and may enhance Optimize's ability to manage investments, they may also have the effect of impairing the Fund's ability to sell the related securities when, and upon the terms, it may otherwise desire, and may subject Optimize and the Funds to claims they would not otherwise be subject to as an investor, including claims of breach of duty of loyalty, securities claims and other director-related claims. In general, the Funds will indemnify Optimize and its officers, employees and representatives from such claims.

Investments in Small and Middle-Market Companies

A component of each Fund's and the Underlying Funds' investment strategy is to invest in small and midmarket companies. While investments in small and mid-market companies may present greater opportunities for growth, such investments may also entail larger risks than are customarily associated with investments in large companies. Small and medium-sized companies may have more limited product lines, markets and financial resources, and may be dependent on smaller management groups. As a result, such companies may be more vulnerable to general economic trends and to specific changes in markets and technology. In addition, future growth may be dependent on additional financing, which may not be available on acceptable terms when required. Further, there is ordinarily a more limited marketplace for the sale of interests in smaller, private companies, which may make realizations of gains more difficult, by requiring sales to other private investors. In addition, the relative illiquidity of private equity investments generally, and the somewhat greater illiquidity of private investments in small and medium-sized companies, could make it difficult for the Funds and Underlying Funds to react quickly to negative economic or political developments.

Minority Investments

The Funds and Underlying Funds may make minority equity investments in entities where the Funds and Underlying Funds do not participate in the management or otherwise control the business or affairs of such entities. Optimize will monitor the performance of each investment, however, it will be primarily the responsibility of the management of the portfolio company or manager of the Underlying Fund to operate such portfolio company or portfolio fund on a day-to-day basis. Although it is the intent of the Funds to invest in portfolio companies with strong operating management that has a successful track record, there can be no assurance that a portfolio company management team will be able to operate the portfolio company successfully.

Need for Follow-On Investments

Following its initial investment in a given Underlying Investment, a Fund may decide to provide additional funds to such Underlying Investment or may have the opportunity to increase its investment in a successful Underlying Investment. There is no assurance that a Fund will make follow-on investments or that the Fund will have sufficient funds to make all or any of such investments. Any decision by a Fund not to make follow-on investments or its inability to make such investments may have a substantial negative effect on a portfolio company in need of such an investment or may result in a lost opportunity for the Fund to maintain or increase its participation in a successful operation.

Special Risks Associated with Offshore Investments

The Funds may invest a portion of their capital in Underlying Investments that are headquartered and have their principal operations outside the United States or Canada. These investments may involve special risks not typically associated with investments in securities of U.S. or Canadian issuers, including (i) economic and political factors, such as the risk of expropriation, restrictions on repatriation of profits, and political and social instability, (ii) differences between U.S. or Canadian and foreign securities markets, including the absence of uniform accounting, auditing, and financial reporting standards in foreign markets, the relatively greater price volatility and illiquidity of foreign securities markets, (iii) currency exchange risks, including the cost of converting investment cash flows from one currency into another, and (iv) tax-related issues, including the possibility of withholding taxes, confiscatory foreign taxes, and double taxation of income earned overseas.

General Economic Conditions

The Funds and the Underlying Funds may make investments in companies that are susceptible to economic recessions or downturns. During periods of adverse economic conditions, these companies may experience decreased revenues, financial losses, difficulty in obtaining access to financing and increased funding costs. During such periods, these companies may also have difficulty in expanding their businesses and operations and may be unable to meet their debt service obligations or other expenses as they become due. Any of the foregoing could cause the value of a Fund's and an Underlying Fund's investments to decline. General economic conditions may affect the Funds' and Underlying Funds' activities. Interest rates, general levels of economic activity, the price of securities and participation by other investors in the financial markets may affect the value and number of investments made by a Fund or considered for prospective investment. Canadian, U.S., international market, and economic conditions have been, may continue to be, disrupted and volatile. Global concerns about future economic growth, rising unemployment, lower consumer sentiment, market instability, inflationary pressures, fluctuating oil prices, the adverse developments in the credit markets and mixed corporate earnings present significant challenges to the national and global economies and equity markets presently and in the future. Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse impact on the Funds and Underlying Funds.

New Strategies

While Optimize has generally had a successful track record as a portfolio manager since 2009, Optimize has not had significant experience investing in strategies similar to the strategies of the OPO Funds on behalf of its clients in the Optimize Private Client Program or otherwise. There can be no assurance that the Funds will achieve their investment objectives.

Illiquidity of Investments

The private investments of the Underlying Funds and direct investments in private Underlying Investments will be highly illiquid, and there can be no assurance that any Underlying Fund of the Fund will be able to realize on their private investments in a timely manner or at all, which may also make the Underlying Investments difficult to value. Illiquidity may result from the absence of an established market for the investments as well as legal or contractual restrictions on their resale. In addition, private credit and private equity investments by their nature are often difficult or time consuming to liquidate. The market prices, if any, for such investments tend to be volatile and may not be readily ascertainable, and a Fund may not be able to sell them when it desires to do so or to realize what it perceives to be their fair value in the event of a sale.

The sale of illiquid investments, such as private Underlying Investments and private investments of Underlying Funds, often requires more time and results in higher brokerage charges or dealer discounts and other selling expenses than does the sale of securities eligible for trading on national securities exchanges or in the over-the-counter markets. A Fund or an Underlying Fund may not be able to readily dispose of such illiquid investments and, in some cases, may be contractually prohibited from disposing of such investments for a specified period of time. Illiquid assets, such as private Underlying Investments and private investments of Underlying Funds, may sell at a price lower than similar investments that are not subject to restrictions on resale.

The risks associated with illiquidity will be particularly acute in situations in which a Fund's operations require cash, such as when the Fund seeks to dispose of certain Underlying Investments, and could

result in the Fund borrowing to meet short-term cash requirements, incurring capital losses on the sale of illiquid assets, having to restrict redemptions or taking other measures to protect the Fund.

The foregoing statement of risks does not purport to be a complete explanation of all the risks involved in the Optimize Private Client Program. Potential investors should consult with their legal and tax advisors, and their Licensed Optimize Representative, before making a decision to open an Account.

DECLARATION OF TRUST

The Declaration of Trust sets out the powers and duties of Optimize as the Trustee and Manager, the attributes of the Units, procedures for purchase, exchange and redemption of Units, record keeping, calculation of the income of the Fund and other administrative matters.

Amendments to the Declaration of Trust

The Trustee or Manager may, without the approval of or notice to Unitholders, amend the Declaration of Trust for certain limited purposes specified therein, including to:

- (a) create one or more new Classes of units provided that such new Class(es) do not have a negative impact on existing Units;
- (b) increase the frequency of Net Asset Value calculations, acceptance of subscriptions or redemptions;
- (c) remove any conflicts or other inconsistencies which may exist between any terms of this Declaration and any provisions of any law or regulation applicable to or affecting a Fund;
- (d) make any change or correction which is of a typographical nature or is required to cure or correct any ambiguity or defective or inconsistent provision, clerical omission, mistake or manifest error contained therein;
- (e) bring the Declaration of Trust into conformity with applicable laws, rules and policies of Canadian securities regulators or with current practice within the securities industry, provided that any such amendment does not adversely affect the pecuniary value of the interest of any Unitholder;
- (f) maintain the status of a Fund as a "mutual fund trust" for the purposes of the Tax Act;
- (g) add or delete additional funds; or
- (h) provide added protection to Unitholders.

Except for changes to this Declaration of Trust which require the approval of Unitholders or changes described above which do not require approval or prior notice to Unitholders, this Declaration may be amended from time to time by the Trustee or Manager upon written notice to Unitholders, provided that such amendment shall not take effect until after a Valuation Date specified in the notice sent by the Trustee or Manager to the Unitholders at least 30 days prior to such Valuation Date. The notice shall either summarize the effect of the amendment or contain the full text of the amendment. Where an amendment only affects a particular Fund or Funds, the notice described above need only be sent to Unitholders of such Fund or Funds. No amendment shall operate, directly or indirectly, to impair or

deprive any Unitholder of the value of its participation in any of the Funds as of the Valuation Date coinciding with or next preceding the day the amendment is effective.

Termination of a Fund

The Funds do not have fixed termination dates and shall continue unless terminated in accordance with the terms of the Declaration of Trust. A Fund may be terminated upon not less than three months' notice to Unitholders by the Trustee or Optimize, if in the opinion of the Trustee or Optimize it would be in the best interests of the Unitholders to terminate the Fund.

Meetings of Unitholders

A meeting of Unitholders of a Fund may be convened by the Trustee or Manager at any time. Not less than 21 days' notice will be given of any meeting of Unitholders. The quorum at any such meeting is two Unitholders present in person or by proxy and representing not less than 20% of the Units then outstanding. If no quorum is present at such meeting when called, the meeting, if called on the requisition of Unitholders, will be terminated and otherwise will be adjourned for not less than 10 days and at the adjourned meeting the Unitholders then present in person or represented by proxy will form the necessary quorum. At any such meeting, each Unitholder will be entitled to one vote for each Unit of each class registered in the Unitholder's name.

The Funds do not intend to hold annual meetings of Unitholders unless required under applicable law or by regulatory authority.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Unitholders may examine copies of the Declaration of Trust at the principal office of Optimize in Toronto, Canada or make a request to receive a copy of the Declaration of Trust from Optimize free of charge. To the extent there is any inconsistency or conflict between the Declaration of Trust and this Optimize Fund Disclosure Document, the provisions of the Declaration of Trust shall prevail.

ADMINISTRATOR

Apex Fund Services (Canada) Ltd., at its principal offices at 350 Bay St #1200, Toronto, ON M5H 2S6 is the Administrator for the Units.

CUSTODIAN

Optimize has appointed National Bank Independent Network ("**Custodian**") as custodian of the Funds and the Accounts pursuant to an agreement dated December 20, 2019 and amended December 23, 2022. The Custodian is responsible for holding the securities and cash held within the Funds. The Custodian is responsible for the safekeeping and recordkeeping of all securities and cash in the Funds and the Accounts. The Custodian is also responsible for providing ongoing statements to clients on a timely basis. Although the Custodian is responsible for ensuring the accuracy of the statements.

The Custodian is an investment dealer and is regulated by Investment Industry Regulatory Organization of Canada ("**IIROC**") and is a qualified custodian under applicable securities law. Each client Managed Account held at the Custodian is insured by the Canadian Investor Protection Fund (CIPF) in an amount up to \$1,000,000.

Either party may terminate this agreement by giving at least 60 days' notice to the other party. The principal office of National Bank Independent Network is 130 King Street West #3200, Toronto, ON M5X 1J9. The Custodian may hold securities on a client's behalf in its name as the nominee. The Custodian may appoint sub-custodians to hold client assets in foreign jurisdictions or to hold client assets other than cash or securities.

AUDITORS

The auditors of the Funds is Ernst & Young LLP, at their office located at 100 Adelaide Street West, Toronto, Ontario M5H 0B3.